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Bursar’s Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

Introduction

The atached financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice. The results of subsidiary and associated entities in which the University has a controlling
interest are consolidated with those of the University and the balance sheet impact of this divide may be seen on the
consolidated balance sheet on page 13.

Results

For 2010/2011, the University adopted a strategy of doubling its budgeted surplus on core pedagogic and research
activities in order to provide a cushion against potentially unbudgeted austerity measures in 2012, Notwithstanding the
surplus of €6.820m reported on page 12 of the attached accounts, this strategy could not be implemented due to
unbudgeted increases in the costs of the University’s capital programme.

The reported surplus is due to a combination of factors not least of which is the application of commercial accounting
practice to the ‘not-for-profit’ activities of the University, For example, ¢osts for building and equipping projects are
expensed under note § of the (‘not-for-profit’) HEA-format of financial statements. These costs fall to the bottom line on
the GAAP-format consolidated financial statements.

Whilst the University did manage to live within its budget during 2010/2011, the long-term impact of ongoing funding
cuts may prove to be damaging to the strategic mission of the University, These funding cuts are exacerbated by the
decline in the national and international economic environment, and associated increasing levels of bad debts in the
student fee ledger,

On the plus side, the University benefited from an increase in student numbers and associated income, reduced core staff
numbers and pay rates, as well as improved operating efficiencies, both in academic and support functions.

The overall impact of reducing core staff numbers and state funding has had a negative impact on NUI Galway’s position
in published University’s ranking/league tables, notably the *‘THE’ (Times Higher Education) rankings. However, the
methodology used in the compilation of these particular rankings may be called into question due to its heavy relisnce on
contributor perceptions (through subjective reputational surveys) of the quality of research rather than quality of teaching
an¢ learning.

Capital Development Programme

Recently-concluded negotiations with contracting firms that tendered for other previously-stalled capital projects (five in
total) have ensured that the projects will proceed in 2012,

Pensions Funding

In March of 2011, the Higher Education Authority announced agreement to inclusion of a 20% Employer Pension
Contribution in all goverment funded research contracts. Private providers of Contract Research funding have indicated
that they will do likewise and this is a welcome development removing some of the doubt that has existed over the extent
of University exposure to pengion liabilities for such fixed term contract staff, following the introduction of the Fixed
Term Workers Act 2003,

Strategic Direction

The University continues to take the hard decisions and associated steps required to deliver on its strategic plan in the
face of ongoing cutbacks in Capital, Recurrent, and Research funding. We seek to secure our resourcing from as wide a
base as possible and to clearly demonstrate value for money in the way we apply these funds for the benefit of the whole
University commupity and its stakeholders.

Mary C Dooley,
Bursar

24 February 2012
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES OF UDARAS NA hOLLSCOILE

Udarés na hOllscoile is required to comply with the Universities Act, 1997, and to keep in such form as may be approved
of by An t-Udards um Ard-Qideachas all proper and usual accounts of money received and expended by it.

Udaras na hOllscoile is also responsible for preparing financial statements for each financial year that give a true and fair
view of the state of the affairs of the University and the University group and the resulte of the University group for the
period. Udarés na hOllscoile is atso responsible for preparing the HEA Funding Statement in accordance with the most
recent Harmonisation of Aceounts Agreement,

In preparing those accounts, Udaras na hOllscoile is required to;

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent:

+ disclose and explain any material departures from applicable accounting standards; and

= prepare the financial staternents on the going concern basig unless it is inappropriate to presume that the University
will continue in operation.

('darss na hOllscoile is responsible for keeping proper books of account which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the University and which enable it to ensure that its financial statements comply with the
Universities Act, 1997, the Statement of Recommended Practice on Accounting for Further and Higher Education
Institutions and are prepared in accordance with accounting standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board and
promulgated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland (Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in lreland).

Udar4s na hOllscoile is responsible for ensuring that the business of the University is conducted in a proper and regular

manner and for safeguarding all assets under its operational control and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

On behalf of Udards na hOQllscoile

James BI‘O; ne
President 24 February 2012
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Statement on the System of Internal Control

I

On behalf of Udards na hOllscoile, the President acknowledges that Udards have overall responsibility for the
university’s system of internal control, covering all material controls, including financial, operational, compliance
controls and risk management systems that support the achievement of the university’s policies, aims and
objectives, while safeguarding the wider public interest.

The system of internal control, established by Udards na hOllscoile, is designed to manage risk and to provide
reasonable and not absolute assurances against material error.

(@

(i)

Udaras na hOlscoile (Udaras) has established an appropriate control environment through:

a, the altocation of defined management responsibilities through the University Management Team
members; the establishment of appropriate delegated authority, the documentation of policies,
procedures and regulations; the implementation of robust planning and performance monitoring
gystems; and information systems to ensure timely reporting to Management and Udaras.

b. Udards provides governance oversight to ensure that the processes put in place by management provide
an adequate level of assurance.

c. Udaras is supported in this role by its four standing Cornmittees

1. Standing and Strategic Planning
2. Finance/Resource,

3. Academic Planning and Resource,
4. Support Services.

d. The four Committees operate to written terms of reference and include a substantial number of external
members with appropriate expertise.

e. Udaras itself and two of its four standing Committees (Finance/Resource and Academic Planning and
Resource) are chaired by independent external Chairs.

The University operates a comprehensive set of processes for the identification, evaluation and
management of gignificant rigks,

The risk management framework established in the University includes a Risk Management Group,
comprising all members of the University Management team (UMT) and an experienced external member
of Udards. This Group carries overall executive responsibility for risk management. Responsibility at the
detailed operational level is carried by the Risk Advisory Group, whose reports are provided to the Risk
Management Group, In terms of the overall governance structure, the Risk Management Group is a sub-
committee of Finance/Resource Committee, which oversees, on behalf of Udaris, implementation of the
Risk Management Strategy.

Udarés formally adopted the updated University-wide Risk Strategy in October 2009 inchiding the risk
appetite. The most recent update was undertaken in September 2011 and was adopted by Udaras m October
2011.

The University Strategic Risk Register focuses primarily on risks related to the amainment of the
University’s objectives, and identifies responsibility for the overall management of each risk. It aligns with
the University’s Strategic Plan 2009-2014, A process commenced during 2011 to reassess and recalibrate
University strategic risks

At operational level, risk registers for each College, each of the varipus Support Units and all major
building projects ensure key operational risks are identified and managed.

Risk assessment training and awar¢ness are pramoted through the management structure and risk
management is a standing agenda item at College and Dean’s committee meetings.

The University’s major risks are regularly reviewed by the relevant members of the Risk Management
Group, and at year-end each member provides formal assurances on the adequacy of the management of
key risks and documents the sources of assurances for each major risk, Each individual Annual Risk
Management Return is reviewed by the Risk Management Group.
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Statement on the System of Internal Control (continued)

The relevant training programmes and the process of embedding risk into the existing management systemns
are currently ongoing.

(iify Information systems are in place to ensure that appropriate information is available in relation to
¥  operational, strategic, financial and academic affairs, and
# planning and monitoring, including information systems to compare actual with planned results.
(iv) A comprehensive set of financial policies and procedures has been formally adopted by the Finance /
Resource Committee and Udards na hOllscoile to address inter aofia the financial implications of major
business risk, including financial instructions and notes of procedures, delegation practices such as
authorisation limits, segregation of duties, budget monitoring, risk assessments and management and
multiple internal and external audit routines.
{(v)  The procedures for monitoring the effectiveness of the system of internal control includes the following:
¥  The monitoring role of the Internal Audit Function in relation to the adequacy and effectiveness of the
systems of internal control including risk management.

» The Audit Committee’s role in providing independent oversight of the University’s control
environment

# The Risk Management Group's overall executive responsibility for risk management and its Annual
Reports to the Finance/Resource Comnmittee regarding its operations.

» The oversight role of Udards Committees in respect of their areas of responsibility.

* The role of unit managers within the University, who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control environment within their area.

¥ Consideration by management and the Audit Committee of comments made by the External Auditors
in their management letters and other reports.

#* A programme of Quality reviews of all areas.

4, The effectiveness of the systems of internal controls has been reviewed as follows;

»  The Internal Audit Function’s Reviews (on a cyclical basis) and its annual report to Audit Committee
on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls;

# Consideration by Management and the Audit Committee made by the External Auditors and their
management letter and other reports to the University;

¥ At year-end each member of the University Management Team, following reviews, provides formal
assurances on the adequacy of the management of Key risks and documents the sources of assurances
for each major risk

*  Annual declarations of assurances required from the Chair, on behalf of the four standing committees,
confirming that all significant items of relevance to the making of the statement on the adequacy of the
University’s internal controls have been brought to the attention of Udards.na hQllscoile during the
year

5. No weaknesses in internal control have been identified, from the review carried out in the year, that have resulted
in material losses, contingencies or uncertainties which require disclosure in the financial statements or the
auditor’s report on the financial statements.

Signed:
President

@9\ 24 February 2012



Compfroller and Auditor General
Report for presentation to the Houses of the Cireachtas

Oliscoll na hEireann, Gaillimh

| have audited the financial statements of Ollscoil
na hEireann, Gallimh (the University) for the yaar
ended 30 September 2011 under the Univarsilies
Act 1997. The financial atatements o which this
audit raport relates and which have been prepared

" undar the acdtouning policies sef oul thermin,

comprise the atatemenl of accounting policies, the
consolidatad income and expendHure accounl, the
consolidated and university balance sheets, tha
consolidated cash flow statemant, the consclidated
sfatemant of historic cosl swpluses and deficits,
the consolidated statement of lolal recognised
gelins and [osses and the related notes on pages
16 to 30. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation s applicable
law and Generally Accaptad Accounting Practioe in
Ireland.

Respohalbiliies of the University

The Unlversity is responsible for the preparation of
the financial ataternents, for ensuring that thay give
a true and fair view of the state of the University's
afairs and of its income and expenditure, and for
enswing the regularity of transeclions.

Responsibilities of the Comptroller and Auditor
General

My responsibility is 1o audit the financial steternanis
and report on them in accordance with applicable
law.

My aud! Is conducted by reference to the special
considerations which atlach to bodies in recaipt of
substantial funding from the Stale in relation to
their management and operation.

My audlt is carded out n eccordance with the
Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) and in compliance with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of sudit of the financlsl statemaenta

An oudit involves obtaining evidence aboul the
amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are fres from matenal
misstatemant, whether caused by fraud o error.
This includes an assassment of

s+ whather (he wsccounting policies ame
appropriate to the University's circumstances,
and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed

a the reasonableness of significant accouning
oslimates made in the preparation of the
financial statements, and

« the overall presantation of the financiz!
atatamaents.

| semk 1 rely on evidence from an audit of the
financial statements by audliors engaged by the
Univargity. | also sseX to obtain evidence about
the reguiarity of financial fransactions in the course
of audi.

In addition, | astess the congistency of the other
infomnation presented with the financial staterments.
if | bscome aware of any apparent mafarial
misstatements or inconsistencies, | consider the
implications for my mport,

Opinion on the financlal statements

In my opinion, the firancial statements, which have
besn propeily prepared in  accordance  with
Ganerally Acceplad Accounting Practice in freland,
give & true and fair view of the state of the affairs of
the University and of the University group at 30
September 2011 and of the Income and
expenditure of the University group for the year
then ended,

In my opinion, proper books of account have been
kept by the University. The financial statamants
are In agreemern with the books of account,

Future pension arrangements

Without qualifying my opinion on the financial
siatemnents, | draw sttantion to Note 19 and to the
recognition as at 30 September 2011 of an aseat of
€678 mifion in respect of defemed penskon funding.

The defined benefit pension arrangements
operatad by the University consist of the National
University of ireland Gelway (Closed) Penslan
Scheme 2010 and the Model Pension Scheme.,



Raport of the Comptroller and Auditer General {cto)

The Financial Measures (Miscallanacus
Provislons) Act 2009 provided for the transfer of
the assels of the National University of lretand
Galway (Clogad} Pension Scheme 2010 @ the
Nalional Pensions Reserve Fund. This transfer
was effected on 31 March 2010, Any annusl
déficisiicy “betwean superannuation contributions
withh&ld or reteined and benefits payable under the
closed scheme are made good by payments to the
University from funds provided by the Olreachias
for that purpose.

The racognition of the asset in respecl of the Model
Penglon Scheme anticipates that funding Wil be
providad by the State to meel pension Eabifitles as
thay fall dua. Inheranl in this accounting treatment
is an assumption that any income generated by the
University will in the fret instance be applied
lowards current expenges and that State funding
will meet any shortfall in resources to fund future
pension liablities.

Mattars on which | repert by exception
| report by axception If

* | have not received all the information and
axplanafions | required for my audil, or

« my audit noted any materlal fnstance where
moneys have nol been appled for the
purposas intended or whera the transactions
did not conform to the authorities goveming
them, or

» the Statement on the System of Internal
Control do=s not reflect the University's
compliance with the governance arrangemsnts
sel out in the Code of Governancs of Irleh
Universities, or

» | find there sre cther material matiers refating

to the manner in which public business has
been conducied,

| draw atiention to @ special report on matters
arising out of education audits which was
presentad to D&l Elreann on § June 2012, under
Section 11 of the Complrolier and Auditor Genanml
{Amendment) Act 1993, The report includes a
saction on remuneration of senlor university staft
and lisl amounts paid in excess of ministerlally
approved ralea in sach of the universitles, including
Ollscoil na hEireann, Galllimb.

| have nothing to neport fn regand to other matiers,

AEM Me G "

Seamius McCarthy
Comptraller and Auditor Ganeral
2| August 2012
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies adopted by the University are as follows:

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland.
Accounting standards (generally accepted in Ireland in preparing financial statements giving a true and fair view) are those
issned by the Aceounting Standards Board, as promulgated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland and the
Staternent of Recommended Practice; Aceounting for Further and Higher Education Institutions.

Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the University and its subsidiary undertakings and other undertakings in which
the University has a financial interest, as indicated in note 11. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
period are included in the consolidated income and expenditure account from the date of acquisition or up to the date of
dispozal. Intra-proup sales and profits are eliminated fully on consolidation.

Asgociates are those undertakings in which the University has a participating interest in the equity share capital and over
which it is able to exercise sipnificant influence. Associates are accounted for using the equity method and the University’s
share of results is included in the consolidated income and expenditure account. The University’s interest in their net assets or
liabilities is included as a fixed asset investment in the consolidated balance sheet at an amount representing the University’s
share of the fair values of the net assets at acquisition plus the University’s share of post-acquistion profits or losses.

Investments in associates are shown in the University’s own balance sheet at cost less provisions for impairments in value.

In accordance with FRS2, the activities of the Students Unions have not been consolidated because the University does not
control those activities. The financial statements of the University Foundation are also excluded as they are not controlled by
the University.

Recognition of income
Recurrent grants from the Higher Education Authority are recognised in the period in which they are receivable.

Non-recurrent grants from the Higher Education Authority or other bodies received in respect of the acquisition or

construction of fixed assets are treated as deferred capital grants and amortised in line with depreciation over the life of the
related assets,

Income from specific endowments and donations is included to the extent of the relevant expenditure incurred during the
year, together with any related contributions towards overhead costs.

Income from research grants, contracts, non-capital government grants and other services rendered is included to the extent of
the completion of the contract or service concerned. This is generally equivalent to the sum of the relevant expenditure
incurred during the year and any related contributions towards overhead costs. All income from short-term deposits is
credited to the income and expenditure account in the period in which it is earned.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into euro either at year end rates or, where
they are related forward foreign exchange coniracts, at contract rates. The resulting exchange differences are dealt with in the
determination of income and expenditure for the financial year.

Tangible fixed assets

(a) Land and buildings
The University’s buildings are valued at depreciated historical cost. Freehold land is not depreciated. Freehold buildings
are depreciated over their expected useful economic life to the University — normally fifty years. Leasehold buildings are
included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over the term of the lease.

Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants they are capitalised and depreciated as above. The
related grants are eredited to a deferved capital grant account and are released to the income and expenditure account over
the expected usefu! economic life of the related asset on a basis consistent with the depreciation policy.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Tangible fixed assets (continued)
(8) Land and buildings (continued)

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the fixed asset may not be recoverable.

Buildings under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ certificates and other direct costs
incurred to the financial year end, They are not depreciated until they are brought into use.

The University has considered the application of FRS5 “Reporting the Substance of Transactions” with regard 1o certain
assets used by the University where the legal form of these transactions would indicate that all or part of the assets are
not owned by the University. The financial substance of all transactions has been reflected in the financial statements
and, as such, the full value of these assets is included in tangible fixed assets.

(b) Equipment
Equipment costing less than €10,000 per individual item is written off to the income and expenditure account in the year
of acquisition. All other equipment is capitalised at cost. Capitalised equipment is depreciated over its useful economic
life as follows:

Computer equipment 3 years
Other equipment 5 years

Where equipment is acquired with the aid of specific grants it is capitalised and depreciated in accordance with the above
policy, with the related grant being credited to a deferred capital grant account and released to the income and expenditure
account over the expected useful economic life of the related equipment.

Leased assets

Leasing apreements that transfer to the University substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership of the assets are treated
as if the asset had been purchased outright. The assets are included in fixed assets and the capital element of the leasing
commitments is shown as obligations under finance leases. The lease rentals are treated as consisting of capital and interest
elements, The capital element is applied to reduce the outstanding obligations and the interest element is charged to the
income and expenditure account in proportion to the reducing capital element outstanding. Assets held under finance leases
are capitalised and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or the useful economic lives of equivalent owned assets,

Rental costs under operating leases are charged 1o expenditure in equal annual amounts over the period of the lease.

Financial assets
Fixed asset investments that are listed on a recognised stock exchange are carried at market value. Those that are not listed
are carried at historical cost less any provigion for impairment in their value.

Current asset investments are included in the balance sheet at the lower of their original cost and net realisable value.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of their cost and net realisable value. Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow
moving and defective stock. Expenditure incurred by the University on books and consumable stocks financed from
recurrent grants are charged to the Income and Expenditure account.

Taxation

As an exempt charity, the University is not liable for Corporation Tax or Income Tax on any of its charitable activities, 1t is
registered for Value Added Tax, but since the supply of education is an exempt activity on which no output tax is charged it
is unable to recover input tax on the majority of its purchases.

The University does carry out some commercial activity — most notably in the research area. VAT is ¢harged on income from
this activity where appropriate.

Trading activities undertaken by the University are administered through its subsidiary companies, which as commercial
organisations are liable to Corporation Tax,
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Deferred taxation

In subsidiary companies, who do not hold a charitable status, deferred taxation is provided on all timing differences that have
originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax
in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date.

Timing differences are temporary differences between profits as computed for taxation purposes and profits as stated in the
financial statements that arise because certain items of income and expenditure in the financial statements are dealt with in
different periods for the purposes of taxation,

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the years in which the timing differences are expected
to be reversed, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is not discounted.

A mnet deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and, therefore, only recognised when, on the basis of all available
evidence, it ean be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of
the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

Provigions

Provisions are recognised when the University has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Retirement Benefits
The University operates the following pension schemes:

% Joint Pension Scheme (JPS) — this is a ‘Pay As You Go’ (PAYG) scheme providing pension benefits at retirement
on a defined benefit basis.

» Model Pension Schemes (MPS) — this is a ‘Pay As You Go’ (PAYG) scheme providing pension benefits at
retirement on a defined benefit basis,

Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

There are two defined benefit pension schemes, the Joint Pension Scheme (JPS) (entrants to 31" December 2004) and Model
Pension Scheme (MPS) (entrants from January 1% 2005). The actuarially-assessed present value of the various schemes’
liabilities (calculated using the projected unit credit method) is disclosed as a liability on the balance sheet.

Crirrent service cosis: These are the costs of additional benefits that scheme membets accrue during the year, based on
projected salaries at retirement or earlier cessation of employment. The impact for the year is recognised in the Income &
Expenditure account.

Interest cosr: This is interest on the defined benefit obligation, which is the total present value of the members’ attributed
benefits for valuation purposes at the year-end. The impact for the year is recognised in the Income & Expenditure account.

Actuarial gains or losses: These are (a) differences between the expected and actual return on assets for the year and (b) any

changes in the liabilities due to changes in assumptions or because actual experience during the year was different to that
assumed. These are recognised in the statement of total recognised gaing and losses (STRGL).

10
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Defined Benefit Schemes (continued)

The University considers that its pension labilities are guaranteed by the State, As a consequence, a pension receivable asset,
corresponding to the net actuarially-computed liability for pensions, is recognised on the balance sheet.

Movements on this pension receivable are included in the Income & Expenditure account {(i.e. current service costs and
interest cost) or in the statement of total recognised gains and losses (i.e. actuarial gains or losses) in order to mirror the
underlying movement on the pension liability.
This asset is recognised on foot of :
a) guarantees enshrined in the Financial Measures (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 2009 in respect of JPS pension
benefits at reticement and )
b) the “PAYG"” basis of the MPS approved under the Universities Act 1997, Udaras na hOlls¢oile is of the opinion that
the discussions between the sector, the HEA and Government Departments represented assurances that the State will
fund any cash-flow deficiencies arising from pension payment obligations.

Liquid resources

These include sums on short-term deposits with recognised banks and building societies and government securities.

11
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
Year Ended 30 September 2011

Consolidated Consolidated

2011 2010
Notes €'000 €000
Income
State grants | 54,752 65,526
Academic fees 2 92,441 96,238
Research grants and contracts 3 61,464 64,530
Amortisation of deferred capital grants 15 10,040 9,526
Other income 4 12,733 14,468
Interest income 5 2,245 2,489
Total income 233,675 252,717
Expenditure
Staff costs 6 141,960 133,641
Other operating expenses 7 - 84,759 87,583
Total expenditure 226,719 221224
Surplus for the year after depreciation of assets before taxation 6,956 31,553
Taxation 3 (136) (n
Surplus for the year after depreciation of assets and after taxation 9 6,820 31,542

The surplus for the year arose solely from continuing operations.

The financial statements on pages 8 to 30 were approved by Udaras na hOllscoile on 24 February 2012 and were signed
on its behalf by:

W%ﬁﬁi

James Browge Nollaig MacCongail
President | Registrar

12
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BALANCE SHEET
30 September 2011

Consolidated University
2011 2010 2011 2010
Notes €000 €000 €'000 €000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10 273,280 257,438 272,676 256,681
Financial assets 11 38,358 55,207 38,358 55,207
311,638 312,645 311,034 311,888
Current assets
Stocks 12 80 77 B0 72
Debtors 13 49,204 55,799 50,094 55,889
Cash and bank 83,570 §7,959 77,514 83,273
132,854 143,835 127,988 139,234
Creditors; Amounts falling due within one year 14 (121,535) (155,990) (116,971) {151,014)
Net current assets/ (liabilities) 11,319 (12,155) 11,017 (11,780)
Total assets less current liabilities 322,957 300,490 322,051 300,108
Net assets excluding pension 322,957 300,490 322,051 300,108
Pension receivable 19 677,640 660,249 677,640 660,249
Pension liability (677,640) (660,249) (677.640) (660,249)
Net assets including pension 322,957 300,490 322,051 300,108
Represented by:
Deferred capital grants 15 175,111 159,122 175,111 159,122
Revenue surplus 16 147,846 141,368 146,940 140,986
Total 322,957 300,490 322,051 300,108

The financial state
behalf by:

nts on pages 8 to 30 were approved by Udarés na hOllscoile on 24 February 2012 and were signed on its

o Ml M L

Nollaif MacCongail
Registrar

i

James Browne
President

13
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 30 September 2011

Notes

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities 20

Returns on investment and servicing of finance

Met interest received

Net cash inflow from returns on investment and servicing of finance

Taxation paid

Investment activities
Expenditure on ¢apital projects
Dividends paid

Receipts from sale of fixed assets
Investment movements

Net cash outflow from investment activities

Net cash (outflow)/inflow before financing

Financing

Capital grants received

Net cash inflow from financing

Net cash (outflow)/inflow after financing

(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 21

Consolidated Consolidated

2011 2010

€000 €000
(19,496) 55,395
2,245 2,489
2,245 2,489

(136) (11)
(29,556)  (36,232)
(342) (312)
18 37
16,349 (9,697)
(13,031)  (46,204)
(30,418) 11,669
26,029 35,189
26,029 35,180
(4,389) 46,858
(4,389) 46,858
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Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2011

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF HISTORIC COST SURPLUSES AND DEFICITS

Year Ended 30 September 2011

There are no material differences between the historical cost profit and the reported profit in 2010 or 2011,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

Year Ended 30 September 2011

Surplus on continuing operations after depreciation of assets at valuation,
disposal of assets and tax

Actuarial gain/(loss) in respect of pension schemes
Adjustment to opening liabilities on pension supplementation
Movement on pension receivable

Total recognised gains and logses relating to the year

19
19
19

2011 2010
€000 €000
6,820 31,542
22,609 (109,934)

- (47,250)
(22,609 157,184
6,820 31,542

15
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Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2011

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 State grants 2011 2010
€000 €000
State grants allocated for recurrent purposes 54,752 65,526

The above grant income was received predominantly from the Higher Education Authority and the Department
of Health and Children. It includes amounts received from the HEA of €51.060m (2010: €57.816m).

Ia. Deferred Income 2011 2010
€000 €000
State grant received In respect of current year 54,756 63,396
State grant deferred from prior accounting year 14,073 16,203
(14,077) (14,073)

State grant deferred to subsequent accounting years
State grant per financial statements (see abave) 54,752 65,526

State funding is allocated on a calendar year basis. The university financial year is based on the academic year from
October ta September. In accordance with the university s accounting policies recurrent grants have been recognised
on an accruals basis, In any accounting year, therefore an element of funding will be deferred to subsequent

accounting periods in order to match the funding to the related expenditure.

2 Academic fees 2011 2010
€000 €000
Academic fee income 92,170 95,765
Miscellaneous fee income 271 473
Total fees paid by or on behalf of individual students 92,441 96,238
A total of €41,794m in academic fee income was received from the HEA (2010 - €40.688m).
2a. Student Service Charge 2011 2010
€000 €000
Income from student service charge 20,691 18,159
Less reduction in state grant {2,790) {2,428)
17,901 15,731
Expenditure
Studen: service cosis 1,409 1,947
Examination costs 1,876 1,939
Space costs associated with student facilities 1,799 1,644
Costs relating to registration, fees, admissions and records 2,090 1,921
Capitation grants 4,197 4,121
Careers, Sport and Health 2,689 2,526
Library and computer service 13,827 13,703
Total expenditure 27,887 27.801
Shortfall (9,986) (12,070)

Income from the student service charge represents a coniribution towards the cost of student services provided by the

university. The academic fees figure above includes this ncome.

16



Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2011

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3  Research grants and coniracts

State and semi-state
European Union
Indusiry

Other

4  Other income

Other rental and licence income
Funded post income

Other income

Catering

Student accommodation

5  Interest income

Interest income

2011 2010
€000 €000
45,784 50,931
5,979 5,788
3,910 3,663
5,791 4,148
61,464 64,530
2011 3010
€000 €000
2,312 1,704
1,382 2,051
4,320 5,066
1,097 1,507
3,622 4,140
12,733 14,468
2011 2010
€000 €000
2,245 2,489
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Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2011

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6  Staff costs

"

In 2011, the methodology for measuring full-time equivalents (FTEs) was updated. This has lead to the restatement
of 2010 FTE numbers in the 2011 financial statements. The average weekly number of persons (including senior
post-holders) employed by the University during the period, expressed as full-time equivalent was:

Teaching and research

Technical

Central administration and services
Other

Salaries and wages
Social welfare costs
Other pension costs (note 19)

Interest on pension liabilities
Expected return on pension plan assets

Muavement on pension receivable to offzet pension expense

Net charge to income statement

Other operating expenses

Prizes, scholarships and fellowships

Repairs and maintenance (including computer)
Travel, subsistence and relocation costs
Non-pay recurrent costs for research projects
Consumables (laboratories, etc)

Books, periodicals and journals

Professional, audit and legal (incl. consultancy and recruitment)

Printing and stationery
Light and heat

Rent and rates

Cleaning and waste disposal
Insurance

Marketing and promotion
Depreciation

Other

Non-pay costs for subsidiaries
Bank fees and charges
Bank interest

2011 2010
Number Number
1,190 1,131
113 114
g10 812
32 39
2,145 2,096
2011 2010
€000 €000
119,223 115,371
9,158 9,068
13,579 6,202
141,960 133,641
2011 2010
€000 €00
(29,271} (30,315)
- 14,568
{29,271) (15,747
29,271 15,747
2011 2010
€000 €000
2,600 3,291
11,582 9,727
3,443 3,651
19,866 25,078
1,279 1,316
1,989 2,198
7.110 5,297
1,832 2,200
3,627 2,921
1,224 1,828
1,776 1,807
698 1,184
858 098
13,634 13,342
10,723 9,349
2,292 3,268
134 128
42 -
84,759 87,583

18
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201 2010
€000 €'000
7 Other operating expenses — continued
Other operating expenses include:
Auditors’ remuneration:
«  External audit 83 80
- Internal audit 324 328

8 Taxation

The majority of the University’s activities are not liable to corporation taxation. The corporation taxation charge in
the period in respect of trading activities administered through subsidiary companies amounted to €136,000 (2010:
€11,000).

Deferred taxation in the period amounted to €nil (2010 €nil).

9  Surplus after taxation on continuing operations for the year 201 2010
€000 €000
The surplus after tax on continuing operations for the year is made up as follows;

University®s surplus for the year 5,954 335
Surplus generated by the subsidiary undertakings B66 191
Total 6,820 31,542
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Oliscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2011

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 Financial assets Consolidated University
2011 2010 2011 2010
€000 €000 €000 €'000

Investments at the year end were held as follows:

University — other investments 38358 55,207 38,358 55,207

The University held an interest in the following subsidiary and associate undertakings:

Subsidiary undertakings Principal activity Interest %o
Galway University Press Ltd. Press 100%
Tionél Teo. Conferences 100%
UCG Research Applications Ltd. Holding company 100%
Maoin Champais Teo. Leaging 100%
Endenline Limited Educational infrastructurc 100%
development

Atalia Student Residences Limited  Operation of student residences 100%
Athrutech Limmited IP rights 100%
College Campus Radio Ltd. Radio programming 100%
CCG. Aonad Slainte do Mhicleinn Universgity health unit 100%
Teo.

Samaurium Limited Holds equipment assets 100%
Associated undertakings

Bimini Ltd. IP rights 28%

The registered office and place of work for each of the subsidiary and associated undertakings is NUI, Galway. These
investments were carried at €nil (2010: €nil).

12 Stocks Stocks principally consist of books and consumables. Consolidated and University
2011 2010
€000 €000
University 80 72
Subsidiaries - 3
B0 7

There is no material difference between the balance sheet amount of stocks and its replacement cost.

13 Debtors Consolidated University

2011 2010 2011 2010

€000 €0 €000 €000

Research balances 35,502 44,548 35,502 44,548
Prepayment for academic books and journals 400 408 400 408
Other debtors 2,084 2,374 1,454 1,549
Pension scheme balances 8,149 - 8,149 -
Academic fees - 1,012 - 1,012
Accounts receivable 2,785 7,123 2,785 7,123
NUI levy prepaid 200 200 200 200
Staff housing loans 84 134 84 134
Intercompany balances - - 1,520 015
49,204 535,799 50,094 55,889
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14

15

Creditors: Amounts falling due within
one year

Trade creditors and accrualg

Pension accruals (schemes/NPRF)
Research grants and contracts in advance
Retention monies

Fees received in advance

5.843 funding of capital developments
Intercompany balances

State grants received in advance

Deferred capital grants

Consolidated

At 1 October 2010
Buildings
Equipment

Taotal

Cash received
Buildings
Equipment
Total

Released to income and expenditure
Buildings

Equipment

Total

At 30 September 2011
Buildings

Equipment

Total

Consolidated University
2011 210 2011 2010
€000 €000 €000 €000
34,007 38,727 29,092 33,266
25,831 14,900 25,831 14,900
39,133 51,882 39,133 51,882
822 343 822 843
11,269 12,625 11,269 12,625
- 24,758 - 24,758
- - 351 485
10,473 12,255 10,473 12,255
121,535 155,990 116,971 151,014
HEA Other grants/ Total

benefactors

€'000 €000 €000
96,799 49,328 146,127
7,547 5,448 12,995
104,346 54,776 159,122
17,331 6,647 23,978
373 1,678 2,051
17,704 8,325 26,029
(2,848) (1,551) (4,399)
(3,713) (1,928) (5.641)
(6,561) (3.479) (10,040)
111,282 54,424 165,706
4,207 5,198 2,405
115,489 59,622 175,111
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 Deferred capital grants (continned) HEA Other grants/ Total
benefactors
University €'000 €'000 €000
At 1 October 2010
Buildings 96,799 49,328 146,127
Equipment 7,547 5,448 12,995
Total 104,346 54,776 159,122
Cash recelved
Buildings 17,331 4,647 23,978
Equipment 373 1,678 2,051
Total 17,704 8,325 26,029
Released to income and expenditure
Buildings (2,848) (1,551) {4,399)
Equipment (3,713) (1,928) (5,641)
Total (6,561) (3,479 {10,040
At 30 September 2011
Buildings 111,282 54,424 165,706
Equipment 4,207 5,198 9,405
Total 115,489 59,622 175,111
16 Reconciliation of movement of reserves Consolidated Consolidated University University
2011 2010 2m 2010
€000s €000s €000s €000s
Opening reserves at 1 October 141,368 110,138 140,986 109,635
Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year 6,820 31,542 5,954 31,351
Dividends (342) (312) - -
Closing reserves at 30 September 147,846 141,368 146,940 140,986
17 Capital commitments Consolidated University
2011 2010 2011 2010
€00 €'000 €000 €000
Contracted for but not provided 68,920 71,957 68,920 71,957
Authorised but not contracted out 56,537 63,890 56,537 63,890
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18

Related parties

Maoin Champais Teo is a wholly-owned subsidiary company that provides property under lease terms for
the provision of education to students. NUIG continues to support the working capital requirements of the
company and as at 30 September 2011 was owed €23,195 (2010: €48,493).

Endenline Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary company and its principal activity is the construction of
University properties, NUIG has made payments in respect of development work done as well as purchasing
properties from it and as at 30 September 2011 owed the subsidiary €261,948 (2010: €326,883).

Tiondl Teo is a wholly-owned subsidiary company and ita principal function is to operate the University
conferencing activities. The University has loaned €62,775 to it, which is fully provided for. There has been
no change to this loan balance as at 30 September 2011 and 2010.

UCG Research Applications Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary company incorporated as a holding
entity for the University’s investments in, predominantly, intellectual property (IP) companies in which it has
some active involvement. The University owed €88,633 to the company as at 30 September 2011 (2010:
€86,517),

Galway University Press Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary company incorporated to assist academic
staff of the University in printing and publishing their work. The University continues to support the working
capital requirements of the company and as at 30 September 2011 was owed €13,292 (2010: €12,446).

Atalia Student Residences Limited iz a wholly-owned subsidiary company incorporated to operate the
student residences of Galway Student Residences and Corrib Village on behalf of the University. The
University continues to support the working capital requirements of the company and as at 30 September
2011 was owed €15 (2010: €15).

Athrutech Limited i3 a wholly-owned subsidiary company incorporated to operate as a patent holding
company. Its objectives are to license/sell its technologies, IP and patent portfolio to industry and other third
parties. The University supports the working capital requirements of the company and as at 30 September
2011 was owed €1,520,395 (2010: €845,732).

CCG Aonad Sliinte do MhicLéinn Teoranta is a company limited by guarantee and not having a share
capital. Its principal activity i3 the operation of the health centre in NUIG. The University as at 30 September
2011 owed €47,327 to the company (2010: €72,252),

College Campus Radio Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary company incorporated to meet, primarily, the
radio entertainment needs of third-level students in the Galway City area. The University as at 30 September
2011 owed €86,897 to the company (2010: €101,904).

Bimini Limited is an associate company of the University. The University has a 28% holding. The company
holds a patent. It accounts for the income and related expenses of this patent through the company. The
University as at 30 Septernber 2011 owed €528 to the company (2010: €nil).

An Fhiontarlann Teoranta had been dormant for some time, A strike-off (voluntary) notice was sought and
received for the company during the year,

Samaurium Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary company and it holds equipment assets that are being
used by the University. The University was owed €7,370,777 as at 30 September 2011 (2010: €0).
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19 Retirement benefits
The University operates defined benefit pension schemes,

Funded assets of the Joint Pension Scheme (JPS) had been managed for many years by Bank of Ireland Asser
Manhagement.

On foot of an EU Directive, the Protection of Employee Acts 2001 and 2003 extended pension benefits to part-time
and fixed term workers. This resulted in significant increased membership of the JPS and significantly increased
employer liabilities for provision of pension benefits, The University immediately entered into negotiations with the
University Sector and relevant Government Departments in relation to the funding of these stattory liabilities.

Following these negotiations, the Higher Education Authority wrote to the University conveying its consent for the
operation of the Model Pension Scheme (MPS) on an administrative basis in accordance with the terms of the model
schemes for non-commercial State Bodies, The scheme provides both pension benefits at retirement and post-
retirement pengion increases to relevant staff appointed from 1 January 2005 on a pay as you go (PAYG) basis.

Further discussions over a number of years between the University sector, the HEA and Government Departments in
relation to a long term provision for pension arrangements in the sector concluded in 2009 with sighificant legislative
chanpes being introduced in the form of the Financial Measures (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 2009, This Act came
into force on 26 June 2009, It makes legal provision for (a) the State to underwrite the net pension liabilities of the
JPS and (b) the ransfer of the scheme’s assets to the State (MNational Pension Reserve Fund).

Under this Act, a Transfer Order for the JPS was executed on 31 March 2010, and as provided for in the enabling
legislation:

the penzion assets were transferred to the National Pension Reserve Fund

JPS became National University of Ireland, Galway (Closed) Pension Scheme 2010

the University and each member continues to contribute at the same rate as previously

the obligation to pay benefits in accordance with the pension scheme rules remains an obligation of the
University in relation to the scheme

» if the appregate of the members and employer’s contributions paid or withheld are insufficient to meet the
University’s obligations to pay these benefits in accordance with the scheme, the Minister for Finance shall
make good the deficiency by payments to the University from funds provided by the Oireachtas for this

purpose.

. & & &

Accordingly the University believes that it is appropriate to recognise a pension receivable asset in respect of this
scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 Retirement beneflits (continued)

Although the legislation relates specifically to the JPS the University believes that the discussions berween the
University sector, HEA and Government Departments represents assurances that the State will meet all future pension
liabilities of all defined benefit schemes (including supplementation) on a “Pay As You Go” basis for all catepories of
staff. Accordingly the University has recognised a matching pension receivable in the balance sheet at an amount
equivalent to the full pension liability for all defined benefit schemes for each reported period.

The following disclosures comply with those required under FRS17: Retirement Benefits. FRS17 stipulates the
methodology for deriving assumptions to be used in calculating the University’s pension liabilities and requires
disclosure of the University’s full pension liability including the liability for post-retirement pension increases payable
to pensioners,

The lagt full actuarial valuation was at 30 September 2005. The valuation of the pension liabilities for the purposes of
FRS17 disclosures has been based on actuarial data as at 30 September 2011. The valuation assumptions have been
amended to take account of the requirements of FRS17.

The following tables elaborate further on the basis/calculation of the pension liability,

At year-end At year-end
30 September 2011 | 30 September 2010
(€0005) (€000s)

Change in benefir obligarion
Opening value of schemes liabilities 660,249 472,606
Service cost 24,308 16,964
Interest cost on schemes' liabilities 29271 30,315
Member contributions 5,499 5,090
Actuarial (gains)/losses (22,609) 104,461
Adjustment to opening pension supplementation - 47,250
Benefits paid (19,078) (16,437)
Gross University pension liability at end of year 677,640 660,249

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at start of year - 215,883
Expected return on plan assets - 14,568
Transfer of assets to NPRF - Q15.712)
Reclassification to financial assets (note 11) - (7,121)
Actuarial gain/(loss) - (5,473)
Employer contributions - 9,202
Plan participants' contribution - 5,090
Benefits paid from plan - (16,437)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year - -
Pension receivable from State 677,640 660,249
Total asset value at end of year 677,640 660,249

Net pension deficit at year end - -

Investments of €15.8m (2010: €7.1m) that have been set aside to fund payments in respect of the model pension
scheme are recorded within financial assets on the balance sheet (note 11)
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19 Retirement benefits (continued)

The adjustment to opening pension supplementation in 2010 arose because of a required adjustment to reflect
supplementation in payment within the base actuarial data on which the computations were calculated.

At year-end At year-end
30 September 2011 | 30 September 2010
{€0005) (€000s)
Change in pension recelvable from State
Opening receivable 660,249 256,723
Investments reclassified to financial assets - 7,121
Movement included in STGRL (22,609) 157,184
Movement included in interest expense 29,271 15,747
Movement included in staff costs 10,729 7,762
Transfer of assets to NPRF - 215,712
Closing pension receivable 677,640 660,249
Amonnts recognised in balance sheet
Present value of schame liabilities 677,640 660,249
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net pension liability 677,640 660,249
Pension receivable and net deficit 677,640 660,249
Net pension deficit - -
Components of pension expense
Staff costs
Current service costs 24,308 16,964
Movement on pension receivable (10,729) (7,762)
Amount recognised in I&E account 13,579 9,202
Finunce interest fincome)/eost
Interest cost on scheme liabilities 29,271 30,315
Expected return on plan assets - (14,568)
29,271 15,747
Movement on pension receivable (29,271) {15,747)
Amount recognised in I&E acconnt - -
Statement of total recognised gains and losses
Experience gains arising on scheme liabilities (14,205) {36,349)
Experience loss on scheme assets - 5473
Change in assumptions underlying the present value of
pension scheme liabilities (7,804) 188,060
Movement in pension receivable 22,609 {157,184)

Total pension cost recognised in STRGL - -
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19 Retirement benefits (continued)
At year-end At year-end
30 September 2011 | 30 September 2010
(€0005) {€0003)
Weighted average assumptions used to determine
benefit obligations
Discount rate 4.70% 4.40%
General salary increases 3.25% 3.00%
Pension supplementation 2.50% 2.25%
Revaluation in deferment 1.75% 1.75%
Weighted average life expectancy for mortality
tables used to determine benefit obligations at:
Male member age 65 (current life expectancy) 225 228
Female member age 65 (current life expectancy) 242 244

History of defined benefit obligations, assets and experience gains and losses

Financial year ending 30 September 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

€000 €000s €000s €000s €000
Defined benefit obligation 677,640 660,249 472,606 464,686 446,009
Fair value of plan assets - - 215883 212315 280,89
Pension receivable from State 677,640 660,249 256,723 252,371 165,113
Deficit - - - - -

Experience (gains)/losses on plan

liabilities (14,805) (36,349) 11,894 22,733 3,341
% of plan liabilities (2.18%) (5.51%) 2.52% 4.89% 0.75%
Experience adjustment on assets N/A N/A 10,800 88,620 8,012
% of closing assets N/A N/A  5.00% 41,74% 2.85%
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20

2

22

23

24

Reconciliation of consolidated operating surplus to net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

Surplus on continuing operations after depreciation of assets

Net interest received

Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Depreciation

Decrease in debtors

(Increase)/decrease in stock
{Decrease)/increase in creditors

Deferred capital grants released to income

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

Analysis of changes in cash and cash equivalents

Balance at 1 October
Net cash {outflow)/inflow in year

Balance at 30 September

Contingent liabilities

2011 2010
€000 €000
6,956 31,553

(2,245) (2,489)
9

13,684 13,342
6,595 7.841
(3) 3l

(34,455) 14,634

(10,040) (9.526)

(19,496) 55,395

2011 2010
€000 €000
87,959 41,101
(4,389) 46,858
83,570 87,959

The University is involved in a number of legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. No material adverse
impact in the financial position of the University is expected to arise from the ultimate resolition of these actions,

Comparative fignres

Where necessary, the comparative figures have been reorganised and restated on the same basis as current-year

figures.

Approval of financial statements

Udaras na hOllscoile approved the consolidated financial staterments on 24 February 2012.
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RECONCILIATION OF HEA SURPLUS TO GAAP SURPLUS

2011 2000

€000 €000
Surplus as per HEA financial statements 236 2,780
Capital grant amortisation (including subsidiaries) 10,040 9,526
Pension costs adjustment (2,258) 7,206
Reversal of capital project funding from 1&E account 8,496 15,358
Adjustment to income from research activity (52) 3412
Economic fees reversed from Development Fund - 3,093
Income from subsidiaries (excluding capital grant amortisation) 5,191 4,657
Refurbishment capitalised 35 221
Alignment of income for Corrib Village and biotechnology centre - {63)
Capital expendimre aligned 3,911 1,236
Accrued sundry expenditure for post-year end entries 1,168 053
Expenditure from subsidiaries (excluding depreciation) (3,700) (4,148)
Net internal balances reversal {1,456) (214)
Depreciation (including subsidiaries’ depreciation) (13,684) (13,342)
Insurance proceeds (950) 950
Intercompany provision reversal 21 (72)
Surplus as per consolidated GAAP financial statements 6,956 31,553

The above reconciliation is additional information not forming part of the consofidated financial statements.
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National University of Ireland, Galway
Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh

HEA Cuntais

na bliana dar chrioch 30 Meén Fémhair, 2011

HEA financial statements

for year ended 30 September, 2011
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T4 gnéithe den chaiteachas Caipititil agus Reatha araon arna dtuairiscid sna Réitis Airgeadais seo
maoinithe faoi cheann amhain né nfos mé de na cldir seo a leanas arna riaradh ag an UAQ.

Elements of both Capital and Recurrent expenditure reported in these Financial Statements, bave been funded wnder one or
more of the following programmes administered by the HEA

- - ITIOMNL JFYCLEFHIAT FLAN

ELROPEAN Lm0l
LThCTLARAL Fumify

Fundsd under PRTU
Administersd by the HEA
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Riiteas Dualgas

Ceanglaitear ar an Ollscoil Acht na nOllscoileanna 1997 a chomhlionadh agus na cuntais go
léir is cuf agus is gndch ar airgead a gheobhaidh an Ollscoil né a chaithfidh si a choimead san
fhoirm a cheangl6idh an comhaontd um Chomhehuibhit Cuntas Airgeadais ama ghlacadh ag
gach Oliscoil Fireannach. Nuair a bheidh na cuntais sin 4 n-ullmh aici, ceangléfar na nithe
seo a leanas ar an Ollscoil:

¢ Beartais chuntasaiochta chui a roghnii a bheidh de réir an chomhaontaithe maidir le
Comhchuibhrit Cuntas Airgeadais agus iad a ¢hur i bhfeidhm go leaninach;
Breithitinais agus meastachdin a dhéanamh atd réasunach agus ciallmhar,

o Na raitis airgeadais a ullmhii ar bhonn gnéthais leantaigh ach amhain mura cui an
bonn sin.

T4 an Ollscoil freagrach as leabhair chuntais chui a choimedd a nochtann ag am ar bith staid
airgeadais na hOllscoile agus a chumasafonn di a chinntii go n-ullmhaitear a raitis airgeadais
de réir an chomhaontaithe um Chomhchuibhiu Cuntas Airgeadais agus a chinntia go bhfuil a
riitis airgeadais ag comhlionadh Acht na nOllscoileanna, 1997. T4 an Ollscoil freagrach
freisin as socmhainni ar fad na hOllscoile faoina riali oibriochtuil a chosaint agus dé bhrf sin
as céimeanna réasunta a ghlacadh chun calacis and neamhrialtachtai eile a chosc agus a
bhrath.

Ullmhofar sraith eile raitis airgeadais le comhlionadh agus beidh siad de réir prionsabail
chuntasaiochta a nglactar leo go coitianta in Eirinn agus sa Riocht Aontaithe cé go n-
ullmhaitear na raitis airgeadais seo don Udaras um Ard-Oideachas de réir an chomhaontaithe
maidir le Comhchuibhrith Cuntas Airgeadais.

Ullmhaiodh na raitis airgeadais de réir théarmai an raitis airgeadais roimhe seo agus rinne
KPMG, iniachéiri bainistiochta na hOllscoile, inidchadh orthu.

Ba chéir a thabhairt faoi deara gurb é an tArd-Reachtaire Cuntas agus Ciste initchoir
reachtiil na hOllscoile.

Ar son Udaréas na hOllscoile

24 Feabhra, 2012
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Tuarascdil an Sparanai

Ullmhaiodh na rditis airgeadais seo faoi réir Choinbhinsiin an Chostais StairiGil agus faoi réir na
mbeartas cuntasaiochta a leagtar amach sna nétai ar leathanaigh 40 go 42. Léirionn na beartais
priomhghniomhaiochtai oideolaiocha agus taighde na hOllscoile agus aontaiodh iad ag leibhéal
earnéil na hOllscoile i 1998.

Torthai

Do 2010/2011, ghlac an Ollscoil leis an straitéis barrachas sa bhuiséad a dhiblail chun cosaint a
thabhairt i gcoinne bearta déine neamhbhuiséadaithe a d’fhéadfadh tarld in 2012. Mar gheall ar
arduithe ar chostais chlar caipitil na hQllscoile nach raibh sa bhuiséad, ni fhéadfal an cuspoir seo a
bhaint amach.

D’ainneoin an méid sin, taim sdsta a thuairiscit gur éirigh leis an Ollscoil cloi leis an mbuiséad i rith
2010/2011. Rinneadh é seo in ainneoin dhrochthionchar an mheatha sa gheilleagar naisiinta agus
idirnaisitinta, laghdu gaolmhar sa Mhaoinit Stait, agus méadd ar dhrochfhiacha i mérleabhar tailli na
mac léinn.

Chuidigh roinnt facht6iri leis an méid sin cosiil leis an ardi ar lion na mac 1éinn agus ioncam
gaolmbhar, laghdd ar lion na gcomhaltaf foime agus ratai pa, chomh maith le heifeachtai oibriochta
feabhsaithe, sa taobh acad! agus tacaiochta de.

Bhi drochthionchar ag an laghdd ar lion na geomhaltai foirne agus maoinid stdit ar sheasamh QE
Gaillimh i dtiblai ranguithe/sraitheanna na nOllscoileanna, go mér mér ranguithe ‘THE’ (Times
Higher Education). Ach, d’théadfai, mar sin féin, an mhodheolaiocht a usaidtear chun na ranguithe
seo a chur le chéile a cheistin mar go mbraitheann siad chomh mér sin ar mheoin na bhfreagréirf (tri
shuirbhéanna swibiachtila cdile) maidir le caighdedn an taighde seachas caighdedn an teagaisc agus
na foghlama.

An Clar Forbartha Caipitil

Mar gheall ar idirbheartafochtal le gnélachtal tégdla a rinne tairiscinti ar thograi caipitil a stopadh
roimhe seo (cuig cinn san iomlén) rachaidh na tograi sin ar aghaidh in 2012.

Maoinii Pinsean

[ mi an Mharta 2011, d’thégair an tUdards um Ard-Oideachas go geuirfi Ranniocaiocht Pinsin
Fostéra 20% i ngach conradh taighde maoinithe ag an rialtas. Léirigh solathréiri priobhdideacha
maoinii Taighde Conartha go ndéanfaidh siad amhlaidh agus is mér an fhéilte atd roimhe seo mar
gheall ar an amhras a bhain le dliteanas na hOllscoile 1 leith pinsean do chomhaltai foirmne ar téarma
socraithe, i ndiaidh an Achta um Chosaint Fostaithe (Obair Théarma Shocraithe) 2003.
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Tuarascail an Sparanai ar lean

Treo Straitéiseach

Leanfaidh an Ollscoil uirthi chun an plean straitéiseach a chur i gerich in ainneoin ciorruithe
leantinacha i maoinit Caipitil, Athfhillteach agus Taighde. T4imid ag iarraidh maoinid a fhdil on
oiread foinsi agus is féidir agus luach ar airgead a 1éiriu go soiléir sa chaoi a geaitear an maoini se¢o
ar mhaithe le pobal na hOliscoile agus a pairtithe leasmhara tri chéile.

W

Mary C. Dooley, FCA, MBA
Spardnai

24 Feabhra, 2012
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Toncam Reatha 2010-2011

s  Deontais Stait €544m 24%
o Tailli naMacléinn €94.9m 43%

Deontais Taighde €52.4m 24%

+ loncaim Eile €18.1m 9%

T4 ioncam jomlén na bliana 4.8% nios 1 nd an t-ioncam a tuairisciodh anuraidh. Léirionn sé sin méadi ar
thailli mac Iéinn agus laghdé ar Dheontais Stait. Léirionn ioncam 6 Thionscadail agus deontais taighde laghda
de 1.7% i rith na bliana.

Caiteachas Reatha 2010-2011

# Acadila €643 m 75%
¢ Foirgnimh €31.6m 14%
Riarachan €l42m 6%

+ Seirbhisi Macléinn £€m 3I%

» File €m 2%

Thainig laghdu de 4.3 % ar an geaiteachas.

Caiteachas Caipitil 2010-2011

¢ Foirgnimh €234m 79%
« Trealamh €55m  21%

Léirionn na cuntais a ndearnadh iniGichadh orthu caiteachas caipitil de €28.9 m i rith na bliana, a
mhiondealaitear ina €23.4 ar fhoirgnimh agus agus €5.5m ar threalamh.

Deontais Caipitil 2010-2011

e UAO €17.9m 55%

® Neamhspléach €139m 45%

€31.8 m a cuireadh chun sochair le linn na bliana agus miondealaftear thuas foins{ na suime sin.
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Tuarasciil 6 na hIniichéiri Neamhspléacha Chuig Baill Udaras na hOllscoile, Ollscoil
na hEireann, Gaillimh

T4 initichadh déanta againn ar Raitis Chistiichdin Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh (“an Ollscoil”) don bhliain dar crioch an
30 Meén Fémhair 2011 at4 comhdhéanta den Réiteas um Bheartais Chuntasaiochta, den Chuntas Ioncam agus Caiteachas,
den Chldr Comhardaithe, den Rditeas faoi Shreabhadh Airgid agus na nétai gaolmhara. Ullmhafodh na Raitis
Chistinchdin seo faoina beartais chuntasafochta atd ann,

T4 an tuarascil seo ullmhaithe d*Udarés na hOllscoile amhdin mar chomhlacht de réir reacht na hOllscoile. Chuathas i
mbun &r geuid oibre initichta ionas go bhféadfaimis na nithe ar ghd duinn a lua le baill Udaras na hOllscoile i dtuarascail
initichéiri a tua agus nf chun criche ar bith eile. Chomh fada agus atd ceadaithe sa dlf, ni ghlacaimid agus ni ghabhaimid
freagracht orainn féin maidir le haon duine seachas Udards na hOllscoile as &r n-obair initichta, as an tuarascéil seo nd as
na tuairimf{ atd curtha ar aghaidh againn.

Freagrachtai na hOllcoile agus Freagrachtai na nlnitichéiri
T4 an Ollscoil, faoi mar a leagtar amach ar leathanach 35, freagrach as na Riitis Chistigchéin a chur le¢ chdile. Bunaiodh
ar bhfreaghrachtaf iniachadh ar reacht na hOllscoile, Bord na gCleachtas Inivichdireachta agus trevir eiticidil gairmitila.

Is ¢ ar bhfreaghracht inilichadh a dhéanamh ar na Riitis Chistiuchain de réir cheanglais dli agus rialachdin chui agus de
réir na gCaighde4n Idimaisitinta ar Iniichadh (Riocht Aontaithe agus Eire).

Tuairiscimid duit an twairim atd againn cibé ar ullmhafodh na Réitis Chistitichdin go cuf agus de réir an Chomhaontaithe
um Chonhchuibhriti Cuntas Ollscoileanna- comhaontl a nglacann gach Ollscoil in Eirinn leis agus cibé an dugann na
rditis chistibchdin léargas fior agus cothrom nuair a 1éadh iad cénasc lena polasaithe cuntasaiochta atd leagtha amach ar
leathanach 40 go dti 42. Luaimid cibé an bhfuil an thaisnéis agus na minidchdin vile is ga chun criche na
hinitchéireachta faighte againn agus cibé an dtagann na Réitis Chistidchain leis na leabhair ¢huntais.

Tuairiscimid freigin eibé ar choinnigh an Ollseoil 1gabhair chuntais chud dar linn,

Buniis na Tuairime

Rinneamar an t-inidichadh ar na Réitis Chistitchdin don bhliain dar crioch 30 Medn Fombhair 2011 de réir na gCaighdedn
Tdimndisitnta ar Inidchadh (Riocht Aontaithe agus Eire) a d'eisigh Bord na pCleachtas Initichéireachta. Mar chuid den
iniichadh déantar scrudd, ar bhonn téstdla, ar fhianaise a bhaineann leis na snimeanna agus ar an fhaisnéisi( a bhionn sna
Raitis Chistiich4in. Airitear ann, freisin, measiind ar mheastachain shuntasacha agus ar bhreithiinais a rinne an Ollscoil
agus na Réitis Chistilichdin 4 n-ulimhi agus ¢ibé an oireann na beartais chuntasaiochta do chiins{ na hOliscoile, cibé an
gcuitear i bhfeidhm go leantinach iad agus cibé an ndéantar faisnéisia orthu mar is cuf.

Phleandlamar agus rinneamar dr n-initichadh chun gach faisnéis agus minitchéin a bhaili-faisnéis agus minitichain a -
mheastar a bheith riachtanach chun fianaise leordhdthaineach a chur ar fiil dainn d*fhonn dearbhi réastinach a thabhairt
go bhfuil na Raitis Chistiochain saor 6 mhirditeas abhartha, biodh sin de bharr calacise né neamhrialtachta né earrdide.
A%us sindag teacht ar thuairim, rinneamar meastni ar leordhéthanacht chur-i-lathair na faisnéise sna Raitis Chistiaehdain
trid is trid.

Tugirim

Tz & an twairim ati againn i leith Rditis Chistiichdin na hOllscoile nd gur ullmhaiodh mar is cuf iad de réir an
Chomhaontaithe um ChomhchuibhriG Cuntas is déanal agus go dtugann na Réitis Chistiachdin léargas fior agus cothrom
ar staid ¢hirsal na hOllscoile amhail 30 Mean Fomhair 2011 agus ar shreabhadh airgid agus breis don bhliain dar crioch
ambhlaidh, nuair a éadh iad cénasc lena mbeartais chuntasaiochta,

Fuaireamar gach faisnéis apus gach minin a mheasamar a raibh g4 leo chun an t-initichadh a dhéanambh. Is € an tuairim ata
againn nd gur choimesd an Ollscoil leabhair chuntais chui. T4 na Réitis Chistiichdin ag teacht leis na leabhair chuntais.

David Meagher

Do agus ar son

KPMG

Cuntasbiri Cairte, Gndlacht Imidchta Reachtiail

Teach Odeon, An Fhaiche Mhor, Gaillimh 24 Feabhra 2012
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Raiteas ar Pholasaithe Cuntasaiochta

A

Riitis Airgeadais

Tugann na rditis airgeadais 1éiriv ar theagasc, taighde agus gniomhaiochtai seirbhise atd bainteach leis
an Ollscoil. Déantar rhitis airgeadais maidir le Ciste Pinsean na hOllscoile agus gniomhaiochtai
coimhdeacha neamhspléacha airgeadais a chur i lathair astu fin.

Coinbhinsitin Cuntasaiochta

Ullmhaitear na Raitis Airgeadais faoin gcoinbhinsiiin costais stairiiil, arna mhionathra chun athluachail
ar thalamh agus ar fhoirgnimh a chur san 4ireamh. Cuirtear i lathair jad de réir an chomhaontaithe
reatha um Chomhchuibhii Raiteas Airgeadais arma ghlacadh le haghaidh gach Ollscoile Eireannai.

Ni chomhlionann an comhaontas um chomhchuibhin na réiteas airgeadais an cleachtas cuntasajochta a
bhfuil glacadh leis (GAAP), Déantar réitis airgeadais chomhdhliite a chomhlionann GAAP a ullmhi ar
leithligh.

Deontais Stdit i gcomhair Caiteachas Reatha

Airitear deontais reatha ar bhunts fabhruithe. T4 an Deontas Reatha a Gsdidtear i gcomhair séemhainni
dochta a cheannach aistrithe go dt{ an cilchiste ginearalta.

Deontais Stdit i gcomhair Caiteachas Caipitiil

Airitear sna réitis airgeadais na deontais stiit ata ceadaithe ag an UAO do chaiteachas caipitidil den
tréimhse de réir an méid airgid a fritheadh.

Ioncam Tailli

Déantar ioncam tailli a mheas ar bhunts fabhruithe agus déantar € a thuairiscin ag leibhéil tailli an
Aontas Eorpaigh. Airitear ioncam tailli Neamh-Aontas Eorpaigh suas go dti leibhéal an Aontais
Eorpaigh agus déantar aon fhuilleach (suas go dti an tAonad Costas déanai is mé a mbaineann sé leis) a
thuairiscit faoi loncam Ilghnéitheach. Airitear aon fhuilleach até os cionn an Aonaid Costais is déanai a
mbaineann sé leis faoi sheirbhisi coimhdheacha.

Leithdhailti Ceadaithe

T4 an cuntas ioncam agus caiteachas ullmhaithe ar bhunis fabhruithe cé is mdbite de na heisceachtai seo
a leanas:

(i)  Caiteachas neamhpha na ranna acad(la agus ranna seirbhisi éagsila agus ioncam na ranna seo
nuair is ann do.

(ii) Trealamh roinne agus mionoibreacha.

Sna cdsanna seo, direofar caiteachas ar bhonn buiséad formheasta agus tabharfar ar aghaidh

jarmhéideanna inmheanacha sa Chlar Comhardaithe faoi Shécmhainni Reatha né faoi Dhliteanais, de

réir mar is iomchui.
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Raiteas ar Pholasaithe Cuntasafochta, ar lean

G

S6cmhainni Dochta agus Dimheas

Luaitear costas stairigil le gach sécmhainn seasta seachas Talamh agus Foirgnimh. Rinneadh foirgnimh
a bhi criochnaithe faoin 30 Me&n Fémhair 1998 a athluachéil go hinmheénach, ina geeann agus ina
geeann, ag luach reatha athsholdthair an data sin lbide an muirear gaolmhar dimheasa. Léiritear
foirgnimh a tégadh i rith na bliana ag a geostas stairiiiil agus toimhditear go mbeidh saol dsaideach 50
bliain acu. Rinneadh talamh a athluachail chomh maith ag an luach reatha Gsdide amhail an 30 Meén
Fémbhair 1998,

Tugtar cuntas ar an mbunchostas ar thoirgnimh ata & dtégdil, bunaithe ar luach theastas na n-
ailtiri agus ar chostais dhireacha eile a thabhéfar go deireadh na bliana airgeadais.  Ni
dhimhesastar iad go dti go n-Usaidtear iad. Discriobhtar trealamh a bhfuil costas nios lia na €10,000
air go dti an cuntas ioncaim agus caiteachais do bhliain a cheannaithe.

Foirgnimh; 50 bliain
Trealamh Riomhaireachta: 3 bliana
Trealamh Eile 5 bliana

Nil dimheas i geeist i geas talin

Déantar athbhreithniii ar bhearnichin séemhainne seasta mé léirfonn imeachtai no athruithe cihinsi go
bhféadfadh sé nach mbeidh méid iasachta na sécmhainne seasta in-aisghabhala.

Culchiste Ginearilta

Léirionn an Cilchiste Ginearalta luach an chistifichdn atd iarrtha i gecomhair réamhchiraim caipiteal, tar
€is amachtha i gcomhréir le dimheas, maraon le fuilleach ar ghniomhafochta seirbhise coimhdheacha.

Deontais Thaighde agus Thionscadail

Taispeaintear caiteachas taighde conartha glan & ranniocaiocht go costais indireacha. Airitear joncam 6
dheontais thaighde chonartha sa Chuntas Joncam agus Caiteachas de réir costas an chaiteachais a bhain
leis. Airitear ranniocaiocht taighde conartha go costais indireacha na hOllscoile faoi Ioncam Eile.
Airitear séembainni dochta maoinithe tri Dheontais Taighde faoi ‘Sécmhainni Dochta® sa Chlar
Chombhardaithe,

Airgead Coigriche

Aistritear ioncam agus caiteachas ainmnithe in airgid coigriche de réir na ritai malairte atd i réim ar
dhétai na hidirbheartaiochta. Aistritear séemhainni agus dliteanais ainmnithe in airgid coigriche go Euro
de réir na ratai malairte ata i réim ar dhata an Chlair Chomhardaithe. Déileéiltear le haon bhrabiis no

caillteanais a bhionn ann da thoradh seo taobh istigh den chuntas ioncam.

Cinachas
Nil aon soléthairti déanta do chanachas mar go bhfuil stddas saor 6 chiin ag an Ollscoil,
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L Seirbhisi Coimhdheacha

Is seirbhis{ coimhdheacha na seirbhisi (nach bhfuil 4irithe faoi ghné comhlachta) a chuirtear ar fail ar an
gcampas ar bhuntis costas téarnamh agus até pleanailte le briseadh cothrom sa meantéarmach. Airitear
ioncam infheistiochta ar an chilchiste forbartha bonneagar facin teideal seo freisin. Aistritear an
glanthoradh ar na gniomhaiochtai seo go dti an Cuntas Calchiste Gineardlta.

M. Pinsin

Feidhmionn an Ollscoil scéimeanna pinsin sochair shainithe (Comhscéim Pinsean (JPS) agus Sceéimeanna
Samhail Pinsean (MPS)). Feidhmitear iad seo ar bhonn foctar mar a bsdidtear (PAYG). Té oibleagaid fés
ar an Ollscoil sochair a foc de réir rialacha na scéime pinsean.

Leag An tAcht um Bearta Airgeadais (Fordlacha Iighnéitheacha) 2009 amach, afach, mé ti jomlin na
rannfocaiochtai atda déanta né coinnithe siar ag combhaltai agus ag fost6iri neamhleor chun teacht le
hoibleagaidi na hOllscoile na sochair seo a joc faoi réir na scéime, cliddidh an tAire Airgeadais an easpa
tri iocaiochtai leis an Ollscoil 6 chisti a chuireann an tQireachtas ar fail chun na criocha seo.

Cé go mbaineann an reachtaiocht go sonrach leis an JPS creideann an Ollscoil go léirionn na cainteanna
idir an earndil Ollscoile, an HEA agus Ranna Rialtais dearbhuithe go seasfaidh an Stat le gach dliteanas

pinsean sa todhchai a bhaineann le gach scéim sochair shainithe (forlionadh san direamh) ar bhonn
“loctar mar a Uséidtear” do chomhaltai foirne de gach catagdir (comhaltai MPS san aireamh).

N Stoe

Usdidtear costas no an luach readtha glan, pé diobh is I, agus is earrai inchaite saotharlainne,
staiseandireacht agus bhair fhoirgnimh an chuid is mé daoibh.

O  Infheistiochtai

Té infheistiochtai luaite ag a geostas stairiil.
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Ioncam agus Caiteachas | Income and Expenditure

2011 2010
€000 €000
Ioncam | Income Nota
Note
Dicontais Stait Siate Granis 1 54,405 65,179
Tailli na Mac Léinn  Student Fees 2 94,934 91,365
Toncaim Eile  Other Income 3 18,142 20,688
167,481 177,232
Deontais Taighde agus Tionscnaimh Ressarch Grants and Projects 4 52,413 53,313
Tomlén Total 219894 230,545

Caiteachas | Expenditure

Ranndga Acadila . Academric Deparimrents 5 83,626 85,445
Seirbhisi Acadila Academric Services 6 21,222 21,804
Foirgnimh  Pressises 7 23,144 21,795
Tograi Foirgnfochta agus Trealaimh  Building and Equipping Projects 8 8,495 15,358
Riarachén <dwinisiration 9 14,227 13,532
Costais Eile Oideachais General Educational Excpenditure I 6,062 5,705
Aiseanna agus Conlaistl  Facilitier and Amenities 11 7,137 6,327
Costais Ilghnéitheacha Misceldaneons Excpenditure 12 3,332 3.986
167,245 174,452
Deontais Taighde agus Tionscnaimh  Research Grants and Frojects 52,413 53,313
Iomlén Total 13 219,658 227,765
Breis ar ghniomhaiochtal roimh dhiseriohh Cilchist
Deontais Caipitil, Seirbhisi agus Coimhdeacha agus Dimheas
Surplur on activities before amortisation of Capital Reserves and Grants, 236 2 780
Ancilliary services and Deproceation ?
Breis ar Sheirbhis{ Coimhdeacha Swrpier on Ancillary Services 14 L241 3,270
Dimheas Depredation 15 (17,558) (17,416)
Gluaiseacht sa Chulchiste Ginearélta General Reserve Movement 16 16,317 14,146
Breis don Bhlizin Surplus for year 236 2,780

Is cuid de na cuntais seo an Réiteas ar Pholasaithe Cuntais, an R4iteas faoin Sreabhadh Airgid agus Nétai 1 go 27.
The statement of Accounting Polivies, Cash Flow Statement and Notes 1 to 27 form part of these Aecounts

Sinid %&

Qifigeach Ctinkasalschta/Uachtaran _Acconnting Officer/ Prosident Meaphrénal Regictrar
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HEA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Clir Comhardaithe | PBalance Sheet

Sécmhainni Dochta Fixed Assces
Infheistiochtai Investments

Sécmbainnf Reatha Currenr Assets
Fuilligh sna Bainc agus Airgead Bark Balances and Cash

Feichitnaithe agus Réamhiocalochtal Debtors and Prepeyments
Stoc Stack

Dliteanais Reatha Current Liabilities

Creidifinaithe agus Caiteachas Fabhraithe nios 1G nd bliain amhiin
Creditors and Acerued Excpenditure dus in less than one year

Stcmhainni/(Dliteanas) Reatha Glan Nz Current Assets/ (Liabilities)

S6cmhainni Tomlina Glan Toral Ner Assets

Arbh iad seo a bhfoinsl Represented by

Cilchiste Ginearalta General Reserve

Cllchiste Reatha Current Reserve

Nota
Noie

17
25

13

19

20

22

2011
€000

366,099
22,519

388,618

77,814
45,679
30

123,573

119,842

3,731

392,349

384,527

7,822

392,349

2010
€'000

354,649
48,034

402,683

83,273
36,754
72

120,099

149,548

(29,449)

373,234

363,390

0,344

373,234

Is ¢cuid de na cuntais seo an Rditeas ar Pholasaithe Cuntais, an Raéiteas faoin Sreabhadh Airgid agus Nétaf | go 27,

The Sraterne

Sinin

Oifigeach C tﬁ‘s-al‘gchtZdUachtarén ,meuuﬁng Offiver/ President

Policies, Cash Flow Statement and Notes from 1 ta 27 form part of these Accounts.

Meablranal Regisrer

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Staterents 2011

44



Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2011

HEA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Riiteas faoin Sreabhadh Airgid | Cash Flow Statement

2011 2010
€000 €000 €000 €000

Glan (eis-sreabhadh)/insreabhadh airgid 6 ghnfomhafochtai

oibrithe (N6ta 23) (44,529) 30,197
Net Cash (putflow)/inflow from Operating Activitles (Note 23)

Toradh ar Infheistiocht agus Fonamh Airgeadais
Return on Investment and Servicing of Finance

Us faighte glan N Interest Received 2,228 2,469

Glan eis-sreabhadh airgid 6 ghniomhafochtaf infheistithe
Net Cash Quiflow from Invesoment Activities

Caiteachas ar thiongenaimh chaipitil (29,038) (35,891)
Expenditure on Capital Projects
Faltais 6 Dhfol S6cmhainni Dochta
Receiprs from sale of Fixed Assots 18 8
Gluaiseacht Infheistiochtal fnvestment moverment 25,515 (2,.590)
(3,505) (38,473)
Glan eig-sreabhadh airgid roimh mhaoinia (45,806) (5,807)

Net Cash outflow before Fipancing

Maoginiit Financing

Aistriv ¢ loncam agus Caiteachas

Tranifer fromr Income and Expenditurs 8,495 15,358
Deontais Caipitil UAQ  HE.A Capital Grant 17,906 21,701
Deontais Caipitil Neamh UAQ Non HEA Capital Grant 13,946 14,988
Glan insreabhadh airgid & mhaoinia  Nez Cash inflow from finaniing 40,347 52,047
Glan (¢is-sreabhadh)/insreabhadh tar éis maoinia (5,459) 46,240

Net (oueflow) /inflow afier tinancing

(Laghda)/Méadd ar airgead agus a chomhionann (Néia 24) (5,459 46,240
(Decrease}/Increase In cash and cash equivalents (Note 24)
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HEA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ndtai faoi na cuntais | Notes to the Accounts

2011 2010
1. Deontais Stait Srare Grants €000 €000
Deontais Reatha Recurrent Grants 53,504 64,055
Cistiti Sprioctha do Thionscnaimh Speisialta 815 956
Targsted Funding for Special Initratives
Mion Oibreacha Minor Works 86 168
54,405 65,179
2, T4illi na Mac Léinn  Student Fees
Taillf Acadila  Academic Fees 94,663 90,894
T4illi llghnéitheach Mise/dancons Fres 271 471
924,934 91,3635
3. Ioncam llghnéitheach Miscellaneous Income
Us Saothraithe Interass Receivable 2,228 2,469
Poist Mhaoinithe Funded Posry 1,382 2,051
Cios stl. Rent sts. 2,488 2,454
Deontais Taighde Research Granis 9,164 8,804
Téilli Neamh AE  New EU Feer - 1,419
loncam 6 Intheistiochtai, glan Nez Income from Investments (364) 398
Ioncam Eile Ozber Inmpme 3,244 3,093

18,142 20,688
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HEA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nétai faoi na cuntais, ar lean | Notes to the Accounts cont’d

2011 2010
Pa N/Pha Tomldn
Pay Non Pay Total
€°000 €000 €000 €000
4, Deontas Taighde agus Tionscnaimh Research Grants and Projects
Deontais Taighde Rarearch Grants 29,526 21,519 51,045 51,924
Tionscnaimh File  Other Projects 699 669 1,368 1,389

30,225 22,188 52,413 53,313

5. Ranndga Acadila Academic Departments
Acadlil _Aeademic 61,085 61,085 61,339
Teicniil Techmical 3,794 5,794 5,923
Riarachén agus Ranaiocht 3,276 5276 5,219
Administration and Secretarial
Deontais Rannépa Acadila 11,163 11,163 12,649
Acadermic Department Granis
Hchostais  Miscellansons 308 308 315
72,155 11,471 83,626 85,445
6. Seirbhisi Acadila Academic Sarviees
An Leabharlann  Library 3,729 2,325 6,054 6,482
Seirbhisf Rfomhaireachta Computer Services 3427 2,274 5,701 5,587
An Teanglann Language Centre 46 38 84 138
Acral Teagaisc Awdto Viewal Centre 4 101 105 92
Miocrascop Leictreon  Edctron Microscapy Unit 15 35 25
Gaeilge Labhartha  Spoken Irish 5081 964 6,045 6,630
Staidéar larchéime Graduate Studies 169 123 292 246
Ceangail na Tionscolafocht Tecbnekgy Transfer 143 551 899 963
Eolafocht Mhara Murine Scisnee 2 2 61
An tlonad un Fheabhas Foghlama agus Teagaise 1,033 588 1,621 1,171
Centre for Excellence in Learning &¥Teaching
Oifig Feabhais Quakity Office 255 129 384 409
14,092 7.130 21,222 21,804
7. Foirgnimh  FPremises
Ciram Foirgmearnh  Premirar Matntenance 4,435 9,404 13,839 11,949
Seirbhis Gineardlta Genern/ Services 1,933 2,501 4,524 4,902
Mion Qibreacha  Minor Works 100 100 100
Clos agus Rétal Rent and Rater 352 352 i82
Arachas  Tmiwrance G698 698 1,117
Costas Fuinnimh  Erergy Corts 3,631 3,631 2,845

6,348 16,776 23,144 21,795
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HEA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Nétai faoi na cuntais, ar lean | Notes to the Accounts cont’d

2011
Pa N/Pha Tomlin
Pay  Non Pay Tortal
€000 €000 €000

8. Tograi Foirgniochta agus Trealaimh Building and Equipping Projects
Foirgnfocht Building 7,141 7,141
Trealamh Eguipment 1,354 1,38
85,495 8,495
9. Riarachin Administration
Seirbhisi Riarachan Adminiitrative $ervices 7,358 2,500 10,058
Téilli Gairmitila Professional Feos - 344 344
lichostais  Miscellaneons - 3,825 3,825

7,558 6,669 14,227

10, Costais Eile Oideachais General Educationzl Expenditure
Scraduithe Examinations 1,522 512 2,034
Bronnadh na gCéim Conferring ] kLY 387
Scolgireachtat/Combhaltad larchéime - 3,228 3,228
Scholarships/ Posteraduate Fellowships
Tobhach Ollscoil na hEireann NUT Lesy - 413 413

1,528 4334 6,062

11. Aiseanna agus Conliisti Facilities and Amenities
Deontas Ceannsraithe agus Eile - 1,037 1,037
Capitation and Other Grants
Seirbhisi na Mac Léinn  Student Services 754 2,427 3,181
Oifig na gCeapachaén  Carvers Office 633 101 754
Cléracha Tnsroichteach .ecrss Programmes 997 359 1,356
Sport agus Caitheamh Aimsirg Sport and Recreation 35 i 56
Slinte agus Combhaitlecireacht 574 179 753
Health and Counseliing
3,033 4,104 7,137
12. Costais Ilghnéitheacha Miscellaneous Expendinure
Pinsin Bhreise Addidonal Pensions 3,335 - 3,335
Difriocht Malairte Exchange Differences - (3) 3)
3,335 3) 3,332

2010

€'000

13,890
1,468

15,358

11,351
307
1,374

13,532

1,768
347
3,181

409

5,705

754

3,169
748
1,269
216
671

6,827

3,952
34

3,986
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Notai faoi na cuntais, ar lean | Notes to the Accounts cont'd

13.

14.

15.

16.

2011
P N/Pha Tomlin
Pay Non Pay Total
€°000 €000 €000
Caiteachas Iomldn Total Expenditure
Seirbhisi Acadila agus Seirbhis{ Gaolmhara 108,069 59176 167,245
Avademic and Belated Services
Deontais Taighde agus Tionscaimh 30,225 22,188 52,413
Research Granty and Profects
138,294 81,364 219,658
Seirbhisi Coimhdheacha - Athchoimre Anciltary Services - Summary
2011
loncam  Caiteachas/ Breis
Income Leithdhéileadh  Suplus
Expenditure/
Allocation
€000 €000 £'000
Cuntas Forbartha Develspment Fund - - 1241
loncam infheistiochta ar Chiste Forbartha - - -
Investment Incorse on Developrment Fund
1241
Dimheas ar Sécmhainni Dochta Depreciation of Fixed Assets
2011
€000
Foirgneamh  Buildings 10,049
Trealamh Eguipment 7,509
17,558
Gluaiseacht sa Chillchiste Gineardlta (Nota 20) General Reserve Movement
2011
€000
Ambhiichadh i geomhréir le dimheas _dmertisation in lins with depreciation {17,558)
Breis ar Sheirbhis{ Coimdheacha 6 loncam agus Caiteachas 1,241
go Cilchiste Ginearilta
Surplus of Ancitlary Services from Incurme and Expenditnre fo General Ressrve Acconnt
(16,317)

2010

€000

174,452

53,313
227,765

2010

€000

3,092
178

3,270

2010
€000

10,025
7,391

17,416

2010
€000

(17.416)
3,270

(14,146)
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Nétai faoi na cuntais, ar lean | Notes to the Accounts cont'd

17. Sécmhbainni Dochta Fived Assers
Talamh agus  Obair chaipitii ~ Trealamh 2011 2010
Foirgnimh ata ar sitl Tomlin
Land & Building:  Capital WIP Eguipmont Toral

€'000 €000 €000 €'000 €000
Costas/Luachail ag tis na bliana
Cost/Valuation at start of year
Costas Cost 238,302 34,540 113,227 386,069 350,208
Luachdil Vakution 189,709 - - 189,709 189,709
lomlan Total 428,011 34,540 113,227 575,778 539917
Breiseanna ag Costas Additions at Cost 19.304 4,137 5,597 29,038 35,891
Diiscairti sa Bhliain  Disposais in year - - 230) (230) (30)
AthchatapdiriQ  Recatsgorisation 20,092 {20,092) - - -
Costas/Luachiil ag Deireadh na Bliana
Cost/Valuation at End of Year
Costas  Cas? 277,698 18,3585 118,594 414,877 386,069
Luachdil akation 189,709 - - 189,709 189,709
Iomlan Total 467,407 18,585 118,594 604,586 575,778
Dimheas Depreciation
Ag wis na bliana 47 start of year 126,392 - 94,737 221,129 203,726
Dimheas Charntha Discriofa - - - - (13)
wAecumulated depreciation writien off
Dimheas don bhliain  Depreciation for year 10,049 - 7,509 17,558 17,416
Didscairti sa bhliain - - (200) (200) -
Disposals in Year
Ag deireadh na bliana 4 end of year 136,441 - 102,046 238,487 221,129
Luachdil glan leabhair ag tis na bliana 301,619 34,540 18,490 354,649 336,191
Ner book value at start of year
Luachiil glan leabhair ag deireadh 330,966 18,585 16,548 366,099 354,649
na bliana

Net book value at end of year
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Nétaf faol na cuntais, ar lean | Notes to the Accounts cont’d

18.

19,

20.

Féichiinaithe agus Réamhiocaiochtai Debrors and Prepayments

Caiteachas Taighde Research Expenditure

lasachtaf Tithiochta na Foire  S7aff Housing Loans
Ilfhéichifinaithe agus Réamhiocafochtal Debtors and Prepayments
Fuflligh idir Chuideachtai Tnter Company Balances

Creidivinaithe Credirors
Nios la na bliain amhdin /Due in Jess than one year

Deontais Taighde Neamhchaite Rasearch Grantr Unexpended
Deontais Rialtais Faighte Roimhré State Grantr received in advance
Tailli Acadila Faighte Roimhré _dcademic Foer received in advance
Fuilligh Inmhednacha Intermal Balancer

Creididnaithe Eile agus Costais Dlite  Other Creditors and Acoruals
Fuilligh idir Chuideachtal Iwier Company Badances

Ceannach Maoine ar ais (Al 843) Bay-back of property (Section 843)

Cilchisti Gineardlta Geperal Reserve

Fuilleach
ag tiis
Opening
Balance
€000
Luachdil - Talamh agus Foirgnimh 189,709
Valwation — Land and Buildings
Deontas Caipitil on UAO 140,090
Caprtal Grant from HEA
Cuntas Toncam agus Caiteachas 76,419
Incoms and Expenditure Acoount
Deontais Caipitil Neamhspléach 163,161
Independent Capital Granis
Eile (Aistrifi faoi Seirbhisi Coimhdheacha san 15,140
gireamh)
Ohther (Transfer from Ancillary Services included)
Amuchadh go Cuntas Toncam agus Caiteachas (221,188)
Amortisation to Income and Bxpenditure Acconnt
Amitichadh Carntha ar Dhijscairt( 59
Aceunsmlated amortisation on disposals
363,390

2011
€000

30,505
84
13,570
1,520

45,679

58,058
10,473
11,269
1,029
29,743
351
8,919

119,842

Athrt sa
Bhliain

Current Year

Moverment
€000

17,906

8,495
13,946
(1,852)

(17.558)
200
21,137

2010
€000

25,470
134
10,291
859

36,754

55,810
12,255
12,625
2,485
41,164
451
24,758

149,548

Fuilleach
ag Deireadh
Closing
Balance
€000

189,709
157,996
84,914
177,107
13,288

(238,746
259

384,527
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Nétai faoi na cuntais, ar lean | Notes to the Accounts cont’d

21, Cuntas Rialaithe Pinsean Pension Contral Account
2011 2010
€000 €000 oo €000

Comhscéim Scéim Combhscéim Scéim
Pinsean FEiseaml4ireach Pinsean Eiseamldireach

Joint Pension Mods! Joinr Pension Modsl
Svheme Seherme Scheme Scherme

Ioncam /Income
Ranniocalocht{ Fost6ra (Core) 5,453 293 2,949 1,621
Employer contributions (Corg)
Ranniocalochtafl Fostéra (Taighde) 330 4,168 430 2,158
Employer comtributions (Research)
Ranniocalochtal Fostal Emplayes contributions 2,543 2,223 1,316 2,471
Aithrithe pinsean isteach Pension Transfers in 144 93 523 463
Toncam forliontach Supplementation Incoms 3,335 1,905
Toncam maidir le blianta breise a cheannach 244 43 117 44
Incamse in respect of the purchase of added years
Tomlén / Tetal 12,049 6,820 1,240 6,757
Caiteachas / Expenditurc
iocalocht Pinsean isteach (forlionadh san 15,353 12 7,439 4
direarnh) Pensions in payment (inciuding supplementation)
locaiochtal cnapshuime ar scor 3,603 46 846 2
Lurp tum payments on retirement
focafochtaf bas le linn seirbhise 187
Death in Service Payment
Aistrithe pinsean amach (airgead tirim)
Pension Trangfer out (cash payment)
Aisloc rannfocafochtal Refurds of contributions b} 121 5 68
Riarachén & Costais .ddministration & other costs 275 222
Tomlan / Total 19,148 454 8,290 296
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Nétaf faoi na cuntais, ar lean | Notes to the Accounts cont’d

22.

2011 2010
€000 €000 €000 €000
Comhscéim Scéim Comhscéim Scéim
Pinsean EiseamlaireachPinsean Eiseamldireach

Joint Pension Model Joint Pension Mode!
Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme

(Eagnamh) /Breis (Deficit)/ Surplus (7,099) 6,366 (1,050) 6,461
Fuflleach ag tis Opening Bakance (1,050) 9,123 - 2,662
(Easnamh)/Breis ag deireadh na Bliana (8,149) 15489  (1,050) 9,123
(Deficit)/ Surplis at end of year
Deontas infhaighte /(infoctha) le UAO 8,149 (15,489 1,050 (9,123)
Grant receivable/ (payable) ts HEA
Cistf a infheistiodh le Dliteanais na Scéime 16,107 7.166
Eiseamldiri a chomboiriind
Funds invested to match Model S cherse Liabilitier
Glandheoni Infhaighte/(Infoctha) chuig HEA 8,149 618 1,050 (1,957)

Nett Grant Beceivable/ (payable) o HEA

*Aistrfodh an Chomhscéim Pinsean chuig NPRF ar 310 Mérta, 2010,

*Jaint Pension Fund was trangferred o NFRF ar 31" March, 2010,

T4 cuntag baing faoi Leith oscailte (Cuntas an Qriid Aistrithe) mar chuid de na socruithe aistrithe chun
idirbhearta agus socruithe dinta a é4sca I idiaidh aistrin an chiste pinsean ar 310 Mérta 20190

A stparate bank gcount bas been et wp (Trangfer Qrder Accowns) as part of transfer arrangemsents to facilitate transactions and cloiing
arrangements dfter the tranger of the pension fund on 31 March 2010,

2011 2010
€000 €000

Culchiste Ioncam Revenue Reserve
Fuilleach ag tis de réir na gcuntas deiridh  Opening Balanze 9,844  (41,684)
Breis don Bhliain  Swrpdus for yoar 236 2,780
Glanfhreaschur na bhfabhruithe pinsin  Nez reversal of pension acoruals (2,258) 48,748
Fuflleach Deiridh  Closing Balance 7,822 9,844

Ar scor Treorach 6n AE, leathnaigh na hAchtarma um Chosaint Fostaithe 2001 agus 2003 sochair phinsin le
hoibrithe pdirtaimseartha agus le hoibrithe ar théarma seasta a chumhdach agus d*fhéadfadh go mbeadh méadi
mor ar chostais da bharr sin. Ag fanacht di le réiteach ar an geeist mhaoinithe ghaolmhar seo, rinne an Ollscoil
meastachdn ar na huaschostais a d*théadfadh a bheith i geeist agus rinne sf fordil ina leith do gach bliain po dti
2009. Easnaimh mhéra charnacha agus ciorri ar sheirbhis{ an toradh a bhi ar na forilacha sin.

De bharr caibidli a bhi ann ina dhiaidh sin idir Earndil na hOllscoile agus Ranna Rialtais iomchul maidir le
maoinii na ndliteanas reachtail sin, bunaiodh scéimeanna nua pinsean “foctar mar a Théitear’, Bh{ willeadh plié
ann in 2009 agus ba é an toradh a bhi air gur tugadh isteach athruithe suntasacha reachtafochta leis an Acht um
Bearta Airgeadais (Fordlacha [ghnéitheacha) 2009. Faoin Acht sin, thég an stit ciste pinsean na hOllscoile
faoina chiiram apus t4 focaiochtal pinsean faoin scéim 4 rdtht ag an Stdt agus déanfar na hiocalochtai sin ar
bhonn ‘foctar mar a Théitear’. D4 réir sin, d'fhreaschuir an Ollscoil na fordlacha sin a bhi ann roimhe seo sa
bhliain dar chrioch 30 Mean Fomhar, 2010.

Léirftear na gluaiseachtal caipitil sin i gedlchisti tosaigh sna raitis airgeadais do 2011,
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Nétai faoi na cuntais, ar lean | Notes to the Accounts cont’d

22

23,

24,

25,

Cilchiste Ioncam Revenue Reserve (cont'd)

On foot of an EU Directivs, the Protection of Emplayee Acte 2001 and 2003 extended pension bensfits to pare-time and fixced term
warkers reswlting in significant potential peniion cost increases. While awaifing resolution of the related funding issue, the University
estimated the potential maxineum cosis arising and provided for same in each of the years to 2003,

Subsequent negotiations between the University Sector and relevant Governmient Departments in relation to the funding of these labilities
led to the establishment of mew Pay As You Go' pension scheres and further discussions conclnded in 2009 with sipnificant legisiative
changes being introduced in the form of the Financial Measnres (Miscellansons Provisions) Act 2009. Under this Adt, the Univernity’s
pension fund was taken over by the state and the payments of pension obligations of the scheme are guaranteed by the State 10 be paid on a
“Pay As You Go™ basis. Accordingly, the University reversed these previons provisions in the year ended 30 Seprember, 2010, These
mavements are reflected in apening reserves in the financial statoments for 2071,

Réiteach ar Breis ar an Chuntas Ioncam agus Caiteachas leis an breis glan (eis-
sreabhadh)/insreabhadhairgid 6 ghniomhaiochtai oibrithe

Reconciliation of Income and Expenditure Account surplus to net cash(eutflow)/inflow from
operaring activities

2011 2010
€000 €000
Breis don Bhliain  Swrpies for year 236 2,780
Liide Us Faighte Glan  Less Net Interest Received (2,228) (2,469)
Glanfhreaschur na bhfabhruithe pinsin Net reversal of pension acerwals (2,258) 48,748
Caillteanas ar dhfol sécmhainni seasta Lasr on salke of fixed assets 12 22
Dimheas Diepreciation 17,558 17,416
Amtichadh ar Chilchist! Ginearalta . 4mertisation of General Reserves (17,358) (17,416)
(Méadu)/ Laghdu ar Fheichitnaithe agus Réamhiocafochta (8,925) 7,980
(Inerease) / Decrease in Debtors and Prepaymenis
{Méad()/Laghdt ar Stoic ([Inereas)/ Decrease in Stock (8) 28
(Laghdi) ar Chreidinnaithe (Decrease) in Craditors (29,706) (29,921)
{Laghdu)/Méadad ar Chulchiste Ginearalta {File) (1,852) 3,029
(Decrease)/ inerease in Genmsral Raserwe (Other)
Glan (eis-sreabhadh) /insreabhadh Airgid 6 Ghniomhaiochtai Qibrithe (44,529) 30,197
Net Cash (autflow)] inflow from Oparating Activities
2011 2010
€000 €000
Anallis ar athri in Airgead agus a Chomhionann
Analysis of Change In Cash and Cash Equivalent
Fuilleach ag 1 Deireadh Fémhair  Balence at 1 Octaber 83,273 37,033
Glan{eis-sreabhadh)/ insreabhadh Ner Cash (outflon)/ inflow (5,459 46,240
Fuilleach ag 30 Mean Fombhair  Balanee ar 30 September 77,814 83,273
Infheistiochtai Investments
2011 2010
£'000 €000
Stoc rialtais stl.  Gerernment stocks efc. 22,519 23 487
Ciste Fiachmhiichta TIB IIB Sinking fund - 24,547
22,519 48,034
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27

Ceangaltais Chaipitil Capiral Cornmitments

2011 2010

€000 €000

Ceangaltaig conraithe ag 30 Medn Fomhair 68,920 71,957
Commiteents contracted at 30 September

Udaraithe ach gan a bheith conartha ag 30 Medn Fémhair 56,537 63,890

Aunthorised but not contracted af 30 September

Faisnéisia Pdirtithe Gaolmhara Related Party Disclosures

Mioneolas ar abhair ghaolmhara pairtithe agus idirbheartaiochta na hOllscoile leo mar seo a leanas:
Details of material related parties and the University's transactions therewith are as follows:

Maoin Champais Teo Fochuideachta ar leis an Ollscoil € ina hiomldine, a chuireann foirgnimh ar fail faoi
thearmal 1éasa, le haghaidh oideachais na mac léinn, T4 an Ollscoil ag leanacht lena tacaiocht & thaobh
riachtanas caipiteal oibre an chomhlachta agus ar & 30 Mean Fomhair, 2011 bhi €23,195 dlite di (2010:
€48,493).

Maoin Champais Teo is a wholly owned subsidiary company that provides property under lease terms for
the provision of education to studenis. The University continues lo support the working capital requirements
aof the Company and as of 30 September, 2011 was owed €23,195 (2010: €48,493).

Endenline Limited Fochuideachta ar leis an Ollscoil é ina hiomlaine agus is { an phriomhghniomhaiocht ata
aige nd maoine Ollscoile a thégil. [ rith na bliana, rinne an Ollscoil focalochtaf a bhain le hobair forbartha
atd déanta agus, amhail an 30 Medn Fémbhair 2011 bhf fiacha €261,948 dlite di (2010; bhi fiacha €326,883
dlite di).

Endenline Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary company and its principal activity is the construction of
University properties. During the year, the University made payments in respect of development work done
and, as of 30 September 2011, owed €261,948 (2010; owed €326,883).

Tiondl Teo Fochuideachta ar leis an Ollscoil € ina hiomléine, agus is i an phriomhghniomhafocht atéd aici na
gniomhalochtal comhdhélacha na hOllscoile a ldimhsedil. T4 jasacht de €62,775 tugtha ag an Ollscoil don
chomhlacht, ar a bhfuil soléthar iomlén déanta d6. Ni raibh aon athrii ar an iasacht seo ag 30 Mean Fémhair
2011 agus 2010.

Tionol Teo is a wholly owned subsidiary company and its principal function is to operate the University
conferencing activities. The University has loaned €62,775 to it, which is fully provided for. There has been
no change to this loan bolance ay of 30 September 2011 and 2010,

UCG Research Applications Lid: Fochuideachta ar lindindireacht atA arma corpri mar eintiteas
sealbhaiochta d'infheistiochtai na hOllseoile i gevideachtai maoine intleachtila (IP), go priomha, a bhfuil
baint ghnfomhach éigin ag an Ollzcoil leo, Bhi €88,633 ag an geuideachta ar an Ollscoil amhail an 30 Medn
Fémhair 2011 (2010: €86,517),

UCG Research Applications Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary company incorporated as a holding entity
Jor the University's investments in, predominantly, intellectual property (IP) companies in which it has some
active involvement. The University owed €88,633 1o the company as at 30 September 2011 (2010: € 86,517).

Samaurivm Limited: [s fochuideachta ar limiinéireacht ¢ Samaurium Limited a choinnionn trealamh agus

soermhainni atd in dsdid ag an Ollscoil, Bhi €7,370,777 dlite don Ollscoil an 30 Medn Fémhair 2011 (2010
€0).
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Faisnéisin Pairtithe Gaolmhara Related Party Disclosures (continued)

Samaurium Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary company that holds equipment assets that are being
used by the University. The University was owed €7,370,777 as at 30 September 2011 (2010: €0).

Galway University Press Limited: Is fochuideachta ar landinéireacht ¢ atd arna corprd le cuidii le
comhaltai foirne acadila na hOllscoile i nd4il lena saothar a chur i gcl6 agus a fhoilsil, Leanann an Ollscoil
de bheith ag tact le riachtanais chaipitil oibre na Cuideachta agns amhail an 30 Medn Fomhair 2011, bhi
fiacha €13,292 (2010: €12,446) dlite di.

Gaiway University Press Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary company incorporated o assist academic
staff of the University in printing and publishing their work. The University continues to support the
working capital requirements of the Company and as of 30 September 2011 was owed €13,292 (2010:
€12.446).

Atalia Student Residences Limited: s fochuideachta ar l4niinéireacht é at4 ama corpri leis na harais
chénaithe do mhic Iéinn, Galway Student Residences agus Baile na Coiribe, a chur 4 bhfeidhmii thar ceann
na hOllscoile, Leanann an Ollscoil de bheith ag tach le machtanais chaipitil oibre na Cuideachta agus
ambhail an 30 Meén Fémbhair 2011, bhi €15 (2010: €15) dlite di.

Atalia Student Residences Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary company incorporated to operate the
student residences of Galway Student Residences and Corrib Village on behalf of the University. The
University continues to support the working capital requirements of the Company and as of 30 September
2011 was owed €15 (2010; €13).

Athrutech Limited: Is fochuideachta ar lntinéireacht ¢ atd arna corpri le feidhmiG mar chuideachia
shealbhaiochta paitinne. Is iad na cusp6iri atd aici a teicneolajochtal, TP agus punann paitinni a cheadini/a
dhiol le tionscal né le pairtithe leasmhara eile, Leanann an Ollscoil de bheith ag tacii le riachtanais chaipitil
oibre na Cuideachta agus amhail an 30 Medn Fémhair 2011, bhi fiacha €1,520,395 (2010: €845,732) dlite
di,

Athrutech Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary company incorporated to operate as a patent holding
company. lts objectives are to license/sell its technologies, 1P and patent portfolio to industry and other
third parties. The University supports the working capital requirements of the Company and as of 30
September 2011 was owed €1,520,395 (2010: €845,732).

CCG Aonad Sldinte do Mhic Léinn Teoranta: Is cuideachta faoi theorainn rithaiochta é nach bhfuil
scairchaipiteal aici. Is é priomhghniomhafocht na cuideachta feidhmiG an ionaid sldinte in OEG. Amhail an
30 Meén Fémhair, 2011 ta fiacha €47,327 (201{: €72,252) ar an Ollscoil.

CCG Aonad Stdinte do MhicLéinn Teoranta is a company limited by guarantee and not having a share
capital. Its principal activity is the operation of the health centre in NUIG. The, University as of 30
September 2011 owes €47,327 (2010: €72,252).

Bimini Limited: Ts cuideachta chomhlachaithe de chuid na hOllscoile &. T4 sealichaz 28% ag an Ollscoil.
T4 paitinn i seilbh na cuideachta. Tugann s{ cuntas faci ioncam agus faoi chaiteachais ghaolmhara na
paitinne seo trid an gewideachta, Amhail an 30 Medn Fémhair, 2011 4 fiacha €528 (2010: €0} ar an
Ollscoil.

Biminl Limited is an associate company of the University. The University has a 28% holding. The
company holds a patent. It accourts for the income and related expenses of this patent through the
compary, The University as of 30 September 2011 owes €528 (2010: €nil).

Campus Radio Limited: Is cuideachta chomhlachaithe de chuid na hOllscoile €. T4 sealichas 45% ag an
Ollscoil. Thosaigh an chuideachta ag craoladh i mi na Samhna, 1995. Leanann s de bheith ag freastal ar
riachtanais siamsaiochta raidié na mac 1éinn tria leibhéal, go priomha, i geeantar Chathair na Gaillimhe.
Amhail an 30 Mean Fémhair, 2011 t4 fiacha €86,897 (2010: €101,904) ar an Ollscoil.

Campus Kadio Limited is an associate company of the University. The University has a 45% holding. The
company commenced broadcasting in November 1995. It continues to meet, primarily, the radio
entertainment needs of third-level students in the Galway City area. The University as of 30 September
2011 owes €86,897 (2010: €101,904).
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Statement of Responsibility

The University is required to comply with the Universities Act 1997 and to keep in such form as may
be requited by the Harmonisation of Financial Accounts agreement as adopted by all Irish
Universities all ptoper and usual accounts of money received and expended by it. In preparing those
accounts, the University is required to:

¢ Select suitable accounting policies that ate in accordance with the Harmonisation of Financial
Accounts agreement and apply them consistently;

e Make judgements and estitnatcs that are reasonable and prudent;
Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless that basis is inappropriate.

The University is responsible for keeping proper books of account which disclose at any time the
financial position of the University and which enables it to ensure that its financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the Harmonisation of Financial Accounts agreement and comply with
the Universities Act 1997, The University is also responsible for safeguarding all assets under its
operational control and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

A separate set of financial statements will be prepared to comply and in accordance with gencrally
accepted accounting principles in Ircland and the UK whereas these financial statements prepared for
the Higher Education Authotity are prepared in accordance with the Harmonisation of Financial
Accounts Agreement.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the terms of the foregoing statement
of responsibilities and have been audited by KPMG, the management auditor of the University.

It should be noted that the Comptroller and Auditor General is the statutory auditor of the
University.

On behalf of the University Authority

Re >

Presidfnt ™ 24 February 2012
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Bursar’s Report

Introduction

The attached financial statements are prepared under the Historical Cost convention and in
accordanee with the accounting policies set out in the notes on pages 62 to 64. The policies reflect the
core pedagogic and research activities of the University and were agreed ar University sector level in
1998,

Results

For 2010/2011, the University adopted a stratepy of doubling its budgeted surplus in order to provide
a cushion against potentially unbudgcted ansterity measures in 2012, Due to unbudgeted increases in
the costs of the University’s capital programme, this objective could not be realised.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, I am happy to report that the University managed to live within its
budget during 2010/2011. This was achieved despite the negative impacts of the decline in the
national and international cconomic environment, associated cuts in State Funding, and increasing
levels of bad debts in the student’s fees ledger.

A combination of factors contributed to negate the impact of the foregoing including an increase in
student numbers and associated income, reduced staff numbers and pay rates, as well as improved
operating efficiencies, both in academic and support functions.

The overall impact of reducing core staff numbets and state funding has had a negative impact on
NUI Galway’s position in published University’s ranking/league tables, notably the “THE’ (Times
Higher Education) rankings. However, the methodology used in the compilation of these particular
rankings may be called into question due to its heavy reliance on contributor perceptions (through
subjective reputational sutveys) of the quality of research rather than quality of teaching and learning.

Capital Development Programme

Recently-concluded negotiations with contracting firms that tendered for othcr previcusly-stalled
capital projects (five in total) have ensured that the projects will proceed in 2012.

Pensions Funding

In March of 2011, the Higher Education Authority announced agreement to inclusion of a 20%
Employer Pension Contribution in all government funded tesearch contracts. Private providers of
Contract Research funding have indicated that they will do likewise and this is a welcome
development temoving some of the doubt that has existcd over the extent of University exposute to
pension liabilides for such fixed term contract staff, following the introduction of the Fized Term
Workers Act 2003.
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Strategic Ditection

The University continues to take the hard decisions and associated steps required to deliver on its
strategic plan in the face of ongoing cutbacks in Capital, Recurrent, and Research funding. We scek to
secure out resourcing from as wide a base as possible and to clearly demonstrate value for money in
the way we apply these funds for the benefit of the whole University community and its stakeholders. -

U Qudoe,

Mary C. Dooley, FCA MBA
Bursar 24 February 2012
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RECURRENT INCOME 2010-2011

o State Grants €54.4m 24%

*  Smudent Fees £94.9m 43%

Research Grant €524 m 24%

o Other Incorne €18.Tm 9%

The total income for the year decreased by 4.8% There was an increase in student fees and a decrease in state granis as well
as a decrease of 1.7% in income from funded research grants and projects.

RECURRENT EXPENDITURE 2010-2011
o _Academmic €164.3m 75%
®  Building €31.6m 14 %

Administration €14.2m G %

o Student Services €6m 3%
o (Other €3 2%

Total expenditure decreased 4.3%.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2010-2011
®  Buildings €23.4m  79%

e  Eguipment .5 m 21%

The Audited Accounts show capital expenditure during the year at €28.9m which is further analysed as €23.4 m building
and €5.5m equipment.

CAPITAL FUNDING 2010-2011
= HEA €17.9m 55%

v Non-Stare €13.9m  45%

Capital Funding credited during the year was €36.6m and is analysed above as fo its sources.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Govemning Authority of the National University of Ireland, Galway

We have audited the Funding Statements of the National University of Ireland, Galway (“the University”) for the year ended 30
September 2011, which comprise the Statement of Accounting Policies, Income and Expenditure Account, Balance Sheet, Cash
Flow Statement and the related notes. These Funding Sratements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out
therein.

This teport is made solely to the Governing Authotity in accordance with University stamite. Our audit work has been
undettaken so that we might state to the Governing Authotity those matters we are required to state to it in an auditor’s report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Governing Authonty, for the audit wotk, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the University and Auditor
The University, as described on page 57, is tesponsible for preparing the Funding Statements. Our responsibilitics, as
independent auditor, are established by University statute, the Auditing Practices Board and our profession’s ethical guidance,

Qur responsibility is to audit the Funding Statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requircments and
Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ircland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Funding Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the most
recent Harmonisaton of Accounts agreement as adopted by all Idsh Universiies and when tead in conjunction with the
accounting policies as set out on pages 62 to 64 give a ttue and fair view. We state whether we have obtained all the
information and explanations we consider necessary for the purpose of our audit and whether the Funding Statements arc in
agreement with the books of account. We also report to you our opinion as to whether the University has kept proper books of
account,

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit on the Funding Statements for the year ended 30 September 2011 in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ircland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Funding Statements. It also includes an assessment of the sipnificant
estimates and judgements made by the University in the preparation of the Funding Statements and of whether the accounting
pelicies are appropriate to the University’s citcumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessaty in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Funding Statements are free from material
migstatement, whether caused by fraud or other imregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of infotmation in the Funding Statements,

Opinion

In our opinion the Funding Statements have been propetly prepared in accordance with the most recent Harmonisation of
Accounts agreement and, when read in conjuncdon with the aceounting policies, give a true and fair view of the state of the
University's affairs as at 30} September 2011 and of its surplus and cash flows for the yeat then ended.

We have obtatned all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our
opinion prapet books of account have been kept by the University, The Funding Statements are in agreement with the books
of account.

Doarvid Meagher

For and on behalf of

EPMG

Chartered Accountants, Statutory Audit Firm

Odzan House, Eyre Square, Galway 24 February 2012
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Statement of Accounting Policies

A

Financial Statements

The Financial Statements reflect the teaching, research and related service activides of the
University. The Financial Statements of the University’s pension schemes and of the University’s
financially independent ancillary activities are prepared annually and audited separately.
Accounting Convention

The Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention modified to include
the revaluation of land and buildings. They are presented in accordance with the cxisting
Harmonisation of Financial Statements agteement as adopted for all Irish Universities.

State Grants for Recurrent Expenditure

Recurrent Grants have been recognised on an accruals basis. Recurrent Grant which has been
used for the purchase of fixed assets is transferred to the General Reserve.

State Grants for Capital Expenditure

State Grants approved by the Higher Education Authority for capital expenditure are included in
the Financial Statements of the period to the extent of cash received.

Fee Income

Fee Income is accounted for on an accruals basis and reported at an EU fee level. Non EU fee
income is included up to the EU level with any excess being reported under other income, Any
further cxcess over the related unit cost is included in Ancillary Services.

Approved Allocations

The Income and Expenditure Account is prepated on an accruals basis with the following
exceptions:

() non-pay expenditure of academic departments and certain service departments;
(i) departmental equipment and minor works,

In rhese cases internal balances are carried forward in the Balance Sheet under Current Assets or
Liabilities, as appropriate.

62



Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2011

HEA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Accounting Policies cont’d

G

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

All fixed assets are stated at historical cost with the exception of Land and Buildings. Buildings
that were completed at 30 September 2008 are revalued internally, on an individual basis, at the
cusrent replacement value less the related deptreciation charge. Buildings constructed during the
yeat are stated at their historical cost and are assumed to have a useful life of 50 ycars. Land is
revalued internally at its current use value, The cstimate useful lives of fixed assets by reference to
which depreciation has been calculated on a straight-line basis

is as follows: -

Buildings 50 years
Computer Equipment 3 years
Furniture and Equipment 5 years

Land is not dcpreciated
General Reserve

The gencral tescrve represents the value of funding, after amortisation, applied for capital
purposes, together with the results from Ancillary Scrvices,

Research Grants and Projects

Contract research expenditure is shown net of contributions to indirect costs. Income from
contract research grants is included in the Income and Expenditure account to the extent that the
related expendirure has been incurred. Contract rescarch contribution to the University's indirect
costs is included in ‘other income’. Fixed Assets financed from contract reseatch grants are
capitalised in the balance sheet.

Foreign Currencies

Costs denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Assets and liabiliies denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Euro
at the rates of exchange ruling at the Balance Sheet date. The resulting profits ot losses are dealt
with in the Income and Expenditure account.

Taxation

No provision has been made for taxation, as the University holds tax exempt status.

Ancillary Services

Ancillary Services are services provided on campus on a cost recovery basis, and are planned to
breakeven in the medium term, Investment income on the infrastructural Development fund 13

included under this heading. The net outhirn on such activifies is transferred to the General
Reserve account,
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Statement of Accounting Policies conr’d

M

Pensions

The University operates defined benefit pension schemes (Joint Pension Scheme (JPS) and Model
Pension Scheme (MPS)). These ate operated on a pay-as-you-go (PAYG) basis. The obligation to
pay benefits in accordance with the pension scheme rules remains an obligation of the University
in relation to the scheme.

However, the Financial Measures (Miscellaneous Provisions) Aect 2009 outlined that if the
aggregate of the mernbers’ and employer’s contributions paid or withheld are insufficient to meet
the University’s obligations to pay these benefits in accordance with the scheme, the Minister for
Finance shall make good the deficiency by payments to the University from funds provided by the
Oireachtas for this purpose.

Although the legislation relates specifically to the JPS the University believes that the discussions
between the University scctor, HEA and Government Departments represents assurances that the
State will meer all furure pension liabilities of all defined benefit schemes (including
supplementation) on a “Pay As You Go” basis for all categories of staff (including members of the
MPS).
Stock

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, the majority of which are Laboratory
Consumables, stationery and building materials.

Investments

Investments are stated at their historical cost.



